Public Document Pack

&) Swale

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Agenda
Audit Committee Meeting

Date: Monday, 23 October 2023

Time 7.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT*
Membership:

Councillors Andy Booth, Derek Carnell (Vice-Chair), Simon Clark (Chair), Angela Harrison,
Mike Henderson, Rich Lehmann, Tara Noe, Richard Palmer and Dolley Wooster.

Quorum =3

Pages
Information about this meeting
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how
to join the meeting will be added to the website by 20 October 2023.

Recording and Privacy Notice

Swale Borough Council is committed to protecting the security of your personal
information. As data controller we process data in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation.

This meeting may be recorded. The recording will be retained in accordance
with the Council’s data retention policy and may be published on the Council’s
website. By entering the chamber and by speaking at a meeting, whether in
person or online, you are consenting to being recorded and to the recording
being published.

When joining a meeting online, your username will be visible to others in
attendance. In joining the meeting you are consenting to us processing your
username. You may use a pseudonym as your username but the use of an
inappropriate name may lead to removal from the meeting.

If you have any questions about how we look after your personal information or
your rights under the legislation, please email
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk.

1. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

Visitors and members of the public who are unfamiliar with the building
and procedures are advised that:

(@) The fire alarm is a continuous loud ringing. In the event that a fire
drill is planned during the meeting, the Chair will advise of this.

(b) Exit routes from the chamber are located on each side of the room,


mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk

one directly to a fire escape, the other to the stairs opposite the
lifts.

(c) Inthe event of the alarm sounding, leave the building via the
nearest safe exit and gather at the assembly point on the far side of
the car park. Do not leave the assembly point or re-enter the
building until advised to do so. Do not use the lifts.

(d) Anyone unable to use the stairs should make themselves known
during this agenda item.

Apologies for Absence
Minutes

To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2023 (Minute
Nos. 211 — 215) as a correct record.

Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves, their families or friends.

The Chair will ask Members if they have any disclosable pecuniary
interests (DPIs) or disclosable non-pecuniary interests (DNPIS) to
declare in respect of items on the agenda. Members with a DPI in an
item must leave the room for that item and may not participate in the
debate or vote.

Aside from disclosable interests, where a fair-minded and informed
observer would think there was a real possibility that a Member might be
biased or predetermined on an item, the Member should declare this
and leave the room while that item is considered.

Members who are in any doubt about interests, bias or predetermination
should contact the monitoring officer for advice prior to the meeting.

Part B Reports for decision by the Audit Committee

5.

6.

Annual Financial Report 2022/23 and Audit Findings Report 5-144
Audit Committee Annual Report 2022/23 145 -
154

Issued on Friday, 13 October 2023


https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g3937/Printed%20minutes%20Monday%2024-Jul-2023%2019.00%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=1

The reports included in Part | of this agenda can be made available
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to
arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please

contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES at
democraticservices@swale.gov.uk. To find out more about the
ork of this meeting, please visit www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT


mailto:democraticservices@swale.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Audit Committee Meeting

Meeting Date 23 October 2023

. Annual Financial Report 2022/23 and Audit Findings
Report Title Report
EMT Lead Lisa Fillery, Director of Resources

Head of Service

_ Claire Stanbury Head of Finance and Procurement
Lead Officer

Classification Open

Recommendations Members are asked to:

1. Note the external auditor’'s Audit Findings Report
(Appendix I);

2. Approve the Letter of Representation (Appendix II)
on behalf of the Council;

3. Approve the Annual Financial Report for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Appendix IIl) including the
adjustments set out in the Audit Findings Report.

4. Approve that the Chief Executive and Leader sign
the Annual Governance Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

5. Approve that the Chairman of this Committee signs
and dates the Annual Financial Report for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary
1.1 This report seeks the Audit Committee’s approval of the Council’s Annual Financial
Report for 2022/23 and includes the external auditor’'s Audit Findings Report for
their consideration.
2. Background

Audit Findings Report

2.1 Grant Thornton UK LLP has been the Council’s external auditors since 1
September 2012. Their audit of the financial statements began in August 2023.

2.2 The Audit Findings Report highlights the key matters arising from the audit of the
Council's Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2023. It is also
used to report the audit findings to management and those charged with
governance. Grant Thornton are required to report whether the Council's Annual
Financial Report presents a true and fair view of the financial position, its
expenditure and income for the year and whether they have been properly
prepared. They are also required to reach a formal conclusion on whether the
Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money.

Page 5



2.3

The Audit Findings Report is Appendix I. Grant Thornton will present this report to
the Committee on 23 October.

Letter of Representation

2.4

2.5

The letter sets out assurances from the Council to Grant Thornton that relevant
accounting standards have been complied with and gives further assurances that
the Council has disclosed information where to withhold it would have undermined
the accuracy and reliability of the Annual Financial Report. The letter also covers
the responsibilities of the Director of Resources and those of the Council in
producing the Annual Financial Report for the Council. Grant Thornton require the
Audit Committee to approve the Letter of Representation before they can issue
their opinion and conclusion on the Council’'s accounts for 2022/23.

The Letter of Representation is Appendix Il. Grant Thornton will present this to the
Committee on 23 October.

Annual Financial Report 2022/23

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Appendix Il is the Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2023. This
version has been updated to reflect amendments recommended by Grant Thornton
where agreed as included within their Audit Findings report (Appendix I).

This year saw the timetable for publication and approval of the Annual Accounts
return to the pre pandemic schedule as the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
Regulations 2021 that extended the statutory audit deadlines for 2020/21 and
2021/22 for all local authorities expired. The draft statement of accounts had to be
published by 31 May 2023 (2021/22 had to be published by 31 July 2022) and the
guideline for publication date for audited accounts was 30 September 20223
(2021/22 was 30 November 2022) for all local authority bodies.

As advised at previous audit committees the deadline for publishing the draft
accounts by 31 May 2023 was achieved, but the external audit was not able to be
completed by 30 September. It is anticipated that if the accounts are approved by
committee on 23 October that the audited accounts can be published by 31
October 2023.

As in previous years the Value for Money (VFM) audit will be carried out in the 3
months following the audit of the statement of accounts and a separate report
shared with Audit Committee with the VFM findings

Proposals

3.1

The Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 is attached as
Appendix 111

Page 6



3.2 The Director of Resources and the Head of Finance and Procurement would like to
express their thanks to Grant Thornton for their efforts in completing the required
audit work in time for reporting to this Committee. As in the past, the Director of
Resources and the Head of Finance and Procurement will work with the external
auditors to review the accounts and to continue to maintain and improve them in
the future.

4. Alternative Options
4.1 The Annual Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with statutory
accounting principles. No other options have been considered as it is a legal
requirement that the financial statements are prepared and signed by the person
presiding at this meeting.
5. Consultation Undertaken or Proposed
5.1 Consultation has taken place with Grant Thornton throughout this process.

6. Implications

Issue Implications

Good financial management is key to supporting
the Corporate Plan objectives.

The External Auditor’s opinion is that the
Council’'s accounting statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Council as

Corporate Plan

Financial, Resource and

Property at 31 March 2023 and its income and expenditure
for the year then ended.
The production of the financial statements is a
Legal, Statutory and legal requirement under the 2015 Accounts and
Procurement Audit regulations as amended by the Accounts
and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021.
Crime and Disorder No direct issues

Environment and Climate/
Ecological Emergency

Health and Wellbeing No direct issues

Safeguarding of Children,
Young People and Vulnerable No direct issues

No direct issues

Adults
Risk Management and Health . .

No direct issues
and Safety
Equality and Diversity No direct issues
Privacy and Data Protection No direct issues

7. Appendices

7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the
report:

Page 7



7.1.1 Appendix I: Audit Findings Report

7.1.2 Appendix Il: Letter of Representation

7.1.3 Appendix lll: Annual Financial Report for the year ended 31 March 2023
8. Background Papers

8.1 Detailed working papers are held in the Finance Department.

Page 8



° Grant Thornton

The Audit Findings Report for
Swale Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2023
23 October 2023 - Draft for discussion

6 obed




Commercial in confidence

Contents

Section Page The contents of this report relate only to the
000 1. Headlines 3 mc:'tters WhIC.h have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you as
2. Financial statements 6 part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant
3. Value for money arrangements 18 . )
Your keg Grant Thornton ) rnc:tter's, which may be subject to chonge, and
Y e 4. Independence and ethics 20 in particular we cannot be held responsible to
: you for reporting all of the risks which may
Appendices affect the Council or all weaknesses in your
o) it 2 . . . internal controls. This report has been
Q Key Audit Partner A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 22 prepared solely for your benefit and should
D T +44 (0)20 7728 3181 B. Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements 23 not be quoted in whole or in part without our
C. Audit Adiust t oL prior written consent. We do not accept any
B E matt.dean@uk.gt.com - Audl Justments responsibility for any loss occasioned to any
D. Fees and non-audit services 27 third party acting, or refraining from acting on
Richmond Nuarko . L. the basis of the content of this report, as this
. d E. Draft audit opinion 29 report was not prepared for, nor intended for,
Audit Manager F. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM work 36 any other purpose.

T +44 (0)20 7728 2280
E richmond.n.nyarko@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant

Zargham Malik

Al ssslislont Wsneiger This Draft Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to

T +44 (0)20 7728 3460 the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process,
as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK]) 260. Its contents have been discussed

E zargham.malik@uk.gt.com
with management and the Audit Committee.

Name: Matt Dean Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
For Grant Thornton UK LLP the member firms are not a worldwide

partnership. Services are delivered by the
member firms. GTIL and its member firms are
not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s
acts or omissions.

Date: 23 October 2023

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

This table Financial Statements
summarises the key

findings and other  under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the  Our audit work was completed remotely during August to October 2023. Our findings are

matters a rising National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the summarised on pages 6 to 17. To date we have not identified any adjustments to the Council’s
Code"), we are required to report whether, in our opinion: reporting financial position in the draft accounts. We have identified disclosure adjustments to
from the StOtUtOI’U the Council's financial statements give a true and fair the financial statements that are detailed in Appendix C. We have also raised a recommendation
audit of Swale view of the financial position of the Council and its for management as a result of our audit work to date. These are set out in Appendix B.
H income and expenditure for the Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would
Boroug h Council year; and require modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements, subject

(‘the Council’) and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the to the following outstanding matters;

the prepa ration of CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority * Final quality review check on audit file by engagement manager and engagement leader and
the C i’ accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local conclusion of the audit.
e ouncils Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

. . * Receipt of management representation letter
financial

-gtotements for the  We are also required to report whether other information

* Review of the final set of financial statements

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is

published together with the audited financial statements
&GO rended 31 (including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), and consistent with our knowledge of your council and the financial statements we have audited.
®larch 2023 for the Narrative Report, is materially inconsistent with the Our anticipated financial statements audit report opinion will be unmodified.

. financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 1o .
Ettenhon of those audit, or otherwiss appsars to be materially misstated. Our work on the Council’s Vf]lue for money (VFM) arrangements is not yet c'o’mplete. The .
outcome of our VFM work will be reported in our commentary on the Council’s arrangements in

cha rged with our Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR). We are satisfied this work does not have a material effect on
governance. our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. An audit letter explaining the
Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'], we reasons for the delay is attached in Appendix F to this report. We expect to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report in line with the National Audit

are required to consider whether the Office's revised deadline, which requires the Auditor's Annual Report to be issued no more than three months after the date of the opinion on the
Council has put in place proper financial statements.

arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. Auditors are required to report
in more detail on the Council's overall
arrangements, as well as key
recommendations on any significant
weaknesses in arrangements identified
during the audit.

As part of our planning assessment, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources. At the planning stage, we did not identify any significant risks and based
on our current understanding this remains the case.

Auditors are required to report their
commentary on the Council's
rrangements under the following
pecified criteria:
(D 'mproving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness;
N Financial sustainability; and
*  Governance

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.

2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us to:

* report to you if we have applied any
of the additional powers and duties
ascribed to us under the Act; and

* to certify the closure of the audit.

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the completion of the audit upon the completion of our
work on the Council’s VFM arrangements, which will be reported in our 2022-23 Auditor’s Annual Report.

Significant matters We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff amidst the pressure they were under during these
unprecedented times.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

National context - audit backlog

Nationally there have been significant delays in the completion of audit work and the issuing of audit opinions across the local government sector. Only 12% of local government bodies had
received audit opinions in time to publish their 2021/22 accounts by the extended deadline of 30 November. There has not been a significant improvement over this last year, and the
situation remains challenging. We at Grant Thornton have a strong desire and a firm commitment to complete as many audits as soon as possible and to address the backlog of unsigned
opinions.

Over the course of the last year, Grant Thornton has been working constructively with DLUHC, the FRC and the other audit firms to identify ways of rectifying the challenges which have
been faced by our sector, and we recognise the difficulties these backlogs have caused authorities across the country. We have also published a report setting out our consideration of the
issues behind the delays and our thoughts on how these could be mitigated. Please see About time? (grantthornton.co.uk)

We would like to thank everyone at the Council for their support in working with us to enable us to get to the finalisation of the audit.

QNational context - level of borrowing
«

D\ Councils are operating in an increasingly challenging national context. With inflationary pressures placing increasing demands on Council budgets, there are concerns as Councils look
H alternative ways to generate income. We have seen an increasing number of councils look to ways of utilising investment property portfolios as sources of recurrent income. Whilst there
ave been some successful ventures and some prudently funded by councils’ existing resources, we have also seen some councils take excessive risks by borrowing sums well in excess of

their revenue budgets to finance these investment schemes.
The impact of these huge debts on Councils, the risk of potential bad debt write offs and the implications of the poor governance behind some of these decisions are all issues which now
have to be considered by auditors across local authority audits.

We are not aware of any similar ventures that the Council has entered into or planning to enter into, but we will consider any potential risk to this in our VFM work.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising

from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of

those charged with governance to oversee the financial

reporting process, as required by International Standard on

Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
'ode’). Its contents have been discussed with the
anagement and will be discussed with the Audit
ommittee.

= auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
cordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK]

and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Council's business and is risk based,
and in particular included:

* An evaluation of the Council's internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls; and

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

No changes have been made to the approach set out in the
Audit Plan issued in April 2023.

Commercial in confidence

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to outstanding queries being
resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit Committee meeting on 23 October 2023.
These outstanding items have been detailed in the page 3 of
the Audit Findings Report titled ‘Headlines’



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements

Planning Revised
Amount () Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial 1,650,000 1,620,000 This has been calculated based on 1.95% of your

statements gross expenditure (cost of services) in the draft

accounts.

Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to Performance materiality 1,162,500 1,140,000 This has been calculated as 76% of materiality for
the preparation of the financial statements the financial statements, based on our assessment
and the audit process and applies not only of the likelihood of a material misstatement.
to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to Trivial matters 77,500 76,000 This has been calculated as 5% of headline

acceptable accounting practice and

materiality.
applicable law.

Ve have revised the performance
Qmateriality due to the actual gross
Q:xpenditure changing significantly from that
at the planning stage resulting in a review of
cl}lﬁhe appropriateness of the materiality figure.

We detail in the table our determination of
materiality for Swale Borough Council.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

The presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of
material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

aving considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the Council
(gevenue streams, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue
(Decognition can be rebutted, because:

= There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.
*  Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.

* The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including that of Swale
Borough Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Swale Borough
Council.

During the audit, we have undertaken the following work:
+ reviewed and tested the Council’s revenue recognition policies
* performed testing on material revenue streams

Our completeness testing, we identified several subsequent invoices raised above the de-
minimus level in 2023-24 that relate to 2022-23. Management has not accrued for these
balances resulting in an understatement of Income for 2022-23.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities. The council faces external
scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place
management under undue pressure in terms of how
they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of control,
in particular journals, management estimates and
transactions outside the course of business as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

To address this risk, we:
* Evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals.
* Analysed the journals listing and determine the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals.

Tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration.

*  Gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and
consider their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence.

* Evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

Our audit work to date has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.

U
Q¥ aluation of land and buildings and investment

%roperties

ou revalue your operational land and buildings on a
~plling five yearly basis and your investment properties
every year. The valuation of these assets represents a
significant estimate by management in the financial
statements due to the size of the numbers involved and

the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key
assumptions. We therefore identified valuation of land
and buildings as a significant risk, particularly focused
on the valuers’ key assumptions and inputs to the
valuations.

For assets not revalued in the year management will
need to ensure the carrying value in the Authority’s
financial statements is not materially different from the
current value or the fair value (for investment properties
and surplus assets) at the financial statements date.

To address this risk, we:

* Evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work;

* Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

*  Written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to ensure that the requirements of
the Code are met and discuss this basis where there are any departures from the Code;

* Challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding;

* Assessed how management have challenged the valuations produced by the professional valuer to assure themselves
that these represent the materially correct current value;

» Tested revaluations made during the year to see if they are input correctly into the Authority's asset register;

Evaluated the assumptions made by management for any assets not revalued during the year and how management
has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value; and

* Forall assets not formally revalued, evaluated the judgement made by management or others in determination of
current value of these assets.

Our audit work to date has not identified any issues in respect of Valuation of land and buildings and investment
properties.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability To address this risk, we:

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet as the * Updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to
net defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and
statements. evaluate the design of the associated controls.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the size ¢ Evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an
of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key actuary] for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work.

assumptions. * Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the

We therefore identified valuation of the pension fund net liability as a significant Council’s pension fund valuation.

risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material

misstatement. We have pinpointed this significant risk to the assumptions applied
-@g the professional actuary in their calculation of the net liability.

* Assessed the reasonableness of the actuary’s assumptions and calculations in-line with
the relevant standards, including their consideration of the ongoing impact of the
McCloud, Goodwin and Guaranteed Minimum Pension cases.

QWe have concluded that there is not a significant risk of material misstatement
ue to the source data used by the actuary in their calculation. We will

reconsider this if it becomes apparent at the year-end that there are significant . ] Lo . .
ecial events relating to the source data (such as bulk transfers, redundancies ~ ° Tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes

to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary.

* Assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to
the actuary to estimate the liability.

or other significant movements of staff) which would need to be given special

consideration during the audit. * Undertook procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made
by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing
any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

*  Obtained assurances from the auditor of Kent County Council Pension Fund as to the
controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data
and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation
in the pension fund financial statements.

Our work to date has not identified any significant issues in the valuation of pension fund net
liability. We will provide a further update to Management and Those Charged with
Governance should any issues be identified from our remaining testing.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate = Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Land and Buildings - £76.4m The Council’s accounting policy for non-current assets is at Note 2n. The  We identified a significant audit risk in respect )
Investment Properties - £4.1m policy covers accounting and valuation issues. The policies for heritage of the valuation of land and buildings. In the
Heritage Assets - £2.3m and investment assets are 2h and 2j respectively. course of our work, we have performed an Blue
Management has asked the valuer to consider the year end value of assessment of management's expert, checked
non-revalued properties and the potential valuation change in the assets the completeness and accuracy of the
revalued as 31 March 2023, applying industry average indices and underlying information used to determine the
U determining whether there has been a material change in the total value estimate as well as considering the
Q of these properties. The valuer’s assessment of assets not revalued has reasonableness of movements in the
% identified no material change to the property’s value. valuations and the assumptions used.
The adequacy of disclosure of the estimate in
B the financial statements has also been

considered and is deemed reasonable.

We have disclosed detailed work performed
regarding PPE on page 9.

Assessment

® [Dark Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement Summary of management’s

or estimate approach Audit Comments Assessment
Net pension liability — The Council's net pension We considered the following areas: .
£13.9 million liability at 31 March 20283 is .

£13.9 million (PY £62.6 million)
comprising the Kent County
Council Local Government
Pension Scheme.

The Council uses Barnett
Waddingham LLP to provide
actuarial valuations of the

We have assessed the Council’s actuary, Barnett Waddingham LLP, to be competent, capable and

objective. ng ht
We have assessed the actuary’s approach taken, and detailed work carried out to confirm Purple
reasonableness of approach. urp

We have used PwC as our auditor expert to assess the actuary and assumptions made by the
actuary - see table below for our comparison of actuarial assumptions:

fotuory Volus

U Council's assets and liabilities
Q derived from this scheme. A full "
. o . Discount rate 4+.80% 14.80% to +.85%
«Q actuarial valuation is required
® every three years. Pension increase rate 2.95% 2.65% to 2.95%
N The latest full actuarial valuation
1% above CPI,
© was completed as at March Salary growth 3.95% 0 apove o
. o hence 3.90%
2022. Given the significant value
of the net pension fund liability, Life expectancy - Males
. . 211 19.5-22.1
small changes in assumptions currently aged 45/65
can result in significant Life expectancy - Females
valuation movements. currentlyagedl6/45 23.5 22.9-24+.5
*  We have confirmed the controls and processes over the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying information used to determine the estimate.
*  We conducted an analytical review to confirm reasonableness of the Council’s share of LGPS
pension assets.
*  We confirmed adequacy of disclosure of the estimate in the financial statements.
Assessment

® [Dark Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate = Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Minimum revenue provision - The Council is responsible on an annual basis for determining the amount We have carried out the following work: o
£1.028m charged for the. repayment of d?bt known. as its Mir'wimum Revenue Provision «  Assessed that the MRP has been calculated in .
[MF;P]. The basis for the charge is set out in regulations and statutory line with the statutory guidance; ng ht
uidance.
9 * Confirmed that the Council’s policy on MRP Pu rp|e
The year-end MRP charge was £1.028m a net decrease of £0.22m from 2021- complies with statutory guidance; and
22 (£1.050m).
* Assessed there are no changes to the
g authority's policy on MRP in comparison with
Q 2021-2022.
@D . , .
NG We consider management’s estimate to be
= reasonable.
Assessment

® [Dark Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: Information
Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls
which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business process controls relevant to the financial audit. This
includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control

areas.
ITGC control area rating
Technology acquisition,
U Level of assessment Security development and Technology Related significant
gIT application performed Overall ITGC rating management maintenance infrastructure risks/other risks
D
) ITGC assessment
Ngresso '[deS|gn and . No issues noted
implementation
effectiveness only)
Assessment

® Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

® Not in scope for testing

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements: other
communication requirements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to
communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to
fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no
other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Matters in relation to
related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

“Watters in relation to
aws and regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any
incidences from our audit work.

@
NYyVritten representations

A letter of representation will be requested from the Council.

w
Confirmation requests
from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to various financial institutions and other local authorities for bank and
investment balances. This permission was granted, and requests sent. We have received direct confirmation for all balances.

Accounting practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management were provided.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are requiredto “obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence
about the appropriateness of

O management's use of the going

Q) concernassu mption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude

N whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern” (ISA
(UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice
Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial
Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are
applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in
that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a
material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised
approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

» for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more
likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our
consideration of the Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is covered
elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we have
considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates

* the Council's financial reporting framework

* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements:
other responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary

Other information We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial
statements including the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report, is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No material inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect - refer to

Appendix E.
atters on which We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:
Qye repf)rt by ¢ if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE
%xceptlon guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit,
N * if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties.
6] We have nothing to report on these matters.

* where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported significant
weaknesses.

We have nothing to report on these matters

Specified We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts
procedures for (WGA) consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Whole of Note that work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold specified by the NAO.

Government

Accounts

Certification of the ~ We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2022/23 audit of Swale Borough Council in the audit
closure of the audit  report, as detailed in Appendix F due to incomplete VFM work.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17



Commercial in confidence

3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)

Approach to Value for Money work for :
2022/23 %

The National Audit Office issued its guidance for auditors

in April 2020. The Code require auditors to consider Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance

and effectiveness

whether the body has put in place proper arrangements Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that the

to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver body makes appropriate decisions

of resources. way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning in the right way. This includes

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires Ubiis include:s CITEIRgREES f_or . resources e ensure c]dequatfa arrangements for bﬂ’dget setting

auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements unldejrstq.ndlng C,OStS qn‘d clelivering finances and rr]o|nta|n sustqmo‘ble and management, risk .

under the three specified reporting criteria. efficiencies and improving levels of spending over the medium management, qn‘d' ensuring the
outcomes for service users. term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act

2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not
made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

3. VFM - our procedures and action plan

We have not yet completed all of our VFM work and so are not in a position to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report. An audit letter
explaining the reasons for the delay is attached in Appendix F to this report. We expect to issue our Auditor’s Annual Report no
later than three months after the date of the opinion on the financial statements. This is in line with the National Audit Office's
revised deadline.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. To date, we have not identified any significant
weaknesses from our initial procedures but will provide a detailed update in our Auditor’s Annual Report, which we are planning
to share later in the calendar year.

/¢ abed

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 19



Commercial in confidence

L. Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor

as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
objective reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. We have complied requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and

each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D.

financial statements Transparency

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered action we have taken over the pqst year to improve audit qug”tg as well as the results of
RPrson, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International
@nancial statements. Transparency report 2023.

cRudit and non-audit services

Or the purposes of our audit, we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified:

Service Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

Housing Benefit 27,600 Self-interest (because this  The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for
(Subsidg] Assurance is a recurring fee) this work is £27,600 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £72,620 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all

Process
mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 20



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Audit Adjustments

Audit opinion

A.

B.

C.
g?). Fees and non-audit services
%.

F.

Audit letter in respect of delayed VEM work

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

Appendices

A.Communication of audit matters to those
charged with governance

L. Audi _Auf“t ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
o tion pl YAt Eind
ur communication pian Plan Indings to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
Report the table here.
Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged ° This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other

with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including o
Ts'igniﬁcont risks

L%Dom‘irmotion of independence and objectivity °

(M statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
garding independence. Relationships and other matters which
Oight be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work
performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with
fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings Report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

22



Commercial in confidence

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 1 recommendation for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with
management, and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2023/24 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies

that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing
standards.

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

o Incomplete Accruals of Income Management should ensure that sufficient processes are in place to accrue for
significant items of income that have yet to be received at year end to ensure the

. Th ilh de-mini level of £10,000 h duri
Medium © COUIT s @ deminimis eve © owever auring our completeness of the income balance in the Accounts.

Income/Debtors completeness testing, we identified several
subsequent invoices raised above the de-minimus level in 2023-24 that  Management response
relate to 2022-23. Management has not accrued for these balances

U Sty We will review the processes for income accruals to ensure that the income is
Q resulting in an understatement of Income for 2022-23. accounted for in the correct reporting period for the 2023/24 statement of accounts.
«Q
D
w
=
Controls

@ High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements
Low - Best practice

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to
report

all non trivial
misstatements to those
charged with
governance, whether or
not the accounts have
been adjusted by
management

2 abed

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

There were no audit identified adjusted misstatements in the financial statements

Misclassification and disclosure changes

Commercial in confidence

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final

set of financial statements.

Disclosure errors Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
Disclosure and Presentation Our audit identified some typographical and disclosure errors Yes

which were brought to management’s attention. These errors were

all minor and had no impact on the statement of financial position

or statement of comprehensive income. They were of all a minor

nature

Management response:

Management agreed to amend.
Narrative Report The financial statements and other information should be stand No

alone and all required disclosures should be included. The narrative
report should include a commentary on the Council’s performance.
The Council addressed this by including a hyperlink to information
held on its website. A summary of Key Performance Indicators to
help to focus on key priorities and those aspect that need to be
monitored more closely was omitted .

Management response:

Not adjusted as reported last year the council publishes
performance data on a regular basis and the link within the
accounts points the reader to a more comprehensive report on the
council’s performance. We believe that signposting the readers to
the most appropriate source of data aids the understanding and
decluttering of the statement of accounts

24



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report Misclassification and disclosure changes

all non trivial misstatements The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set
of financial statements.

to those charged with
governance, whether or not

Disclosure errors Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
the accounts have been
odjusted bU monogement. Note 10 Expenditure and income analysed We noted Benefit payments and Employee costs of £32,123k and £14,647k ~ Yes

by nature respectfully were incorrect and should be £31,42%k and £15,970k

respectfully.
Management response:

Management agreed to amend.

cc abed

Note 23 Pension reserve From our review, we noted that note 23 lacked detailed disclosure in line Yes
with the CIPFA code.
Management response:
Management agreed to amend.
Note 32 Capital Expenditure and Capital From our review, we noted the Total capital investment should be split by Yes
Financing type and not bulk.

Management response:

Management agreed to amend.

Note 34 Short term creditor From our review of short-term creditors, we noted that Receipt in advance Yes
should be shown separately and not added to creditors.
Management response:

Management agreed to amend.

Note 47 Collection Fund From our work, we noted the disclosure of the Council acting as agentwas ~ No
omitted.

Management response:

The draft accounts includes the disclosure that the billing authority is
acting as agent to the preceptors and government - The introduction to
the collection fund state that Swale is the billing authority so | do not
believe that this is a valid adjustment and should be removed from the
report

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 25



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments (continued)

K Impact of unadjusted misstatements
The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2022/23 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial
-

statements. The Audit Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below.

Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement of Reason for
Statement Financial Position £ Impact on total net Impact on general not
Detail £°000 000 expenditure £°7000 fund £°000  adjusting

Note 24 Property, plant Not material
and equipment (PPE)
assets

As part of our PPE work,
we noted £1,101k
difference in reconciling
the fixed asset register,
financial statement, and
valuation summary
report.

DR PPE 1,101
CR Revaluation Reserve (1,101)

Note 9 - Defined Not material
Benefit Pension Scheme

- (9)

As part of our pension

| work, we noted £100k
difference in reconciling
the Fair value of Fund
assets to the actuary
report and the financial
statement

DR Pension Liability 100
CR Pension Reserve (100)

Overall impact £0 £0 £0

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 26




Commercial in confidence

D. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit.

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
Council Audit £72,620 TBC
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £72,620 TBC

Details regarding the proposed fee for provision of non-audit services is as below.

§on-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
«Q

(Mudit-related services: Certification of Housing Benefit Claim £27,600 TBC
aotol non-audit fees (excluding VAT) £27,600 TBC

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 27



Commercial in confidence

D. Fees and non-audit services

Audit fees - detailed analysis

The table below provides a reconciliation between the Scale Fee agreed by PSAA and the Fee quoted on the previous page:

Proposed fee

2022/23

Scale fee published by PSAA £54,270

Ongoing increases to scale fee first identified in 2019/20

Audit fee 2019/20 £64,270
_I\éew issues for 2020/21
‘giditioncl work on Value for Money (VfM) under new NAO Code £9,000
D

éredsed audit requirements of revised ISAs £6,350
B;oposed increase to agreed 2019/20 fee £15,350
New issues for 2022/23

Introduction of ISA 315 £3,000
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £72,620

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 28



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

Our audit opinion is included below. We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report.

/€ obed

DRAFT Independent auditor's report to the members of Swale Borough Council
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Swale Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2023, which comprise
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e  give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2023 and of its expenditure and income for the year
then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2022/23; and

e  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK]) and applicable law, as required by the
Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Director of Resources' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report.

29

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Director of Resources' conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared
on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In
doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies
in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the
reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Resources' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months
S-DU from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Q
P Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Resources with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
% sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director of Resources is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in
the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 30



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General
(the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition” published by CIPFA and SOLACE, or is misleading or inconsistent with
the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement
addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the other information published
together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
- is consistent with the financial statements.

jabl
@ Matters on which we are required to report by exception
% Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e  we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit; or

e  we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of,
or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e  we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of
the audit; or

e  we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 31



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of Resources

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration
of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority,
that officer is the Director of Resources. The Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the Director of Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Resources is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have

been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority without the transfer of its services to another public
-y sector entity.

Q
@ Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

g Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Authority and determined that the most
significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks
(the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003).

We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:
e theidentification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;
e the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

e the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 32



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by
evaluating management’s incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the
risk of management override of controls and fraudulent expenditure recognition. We determined that the principal risks were in relation
to journal entries which met a range of criteria defined as part of our risk assessment. Our audit procedures involved:

e  evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect fraud,
e  journal entry testing, with a focus on meeting a range of criteria defined as part of our risk assessment,

e  challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates in respect of land and
buildings and pension fund net liability valuations, and

e  assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial
statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and
detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with
laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of
it.

T obed

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, including for fraud in
expenditure recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related to valuations of land and buildings and pension fund net
liability. We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration
of the engagement team's.

e understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity through appropriate
training and participation

o knowledge of the local government sector

e understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:
o the provisions of the applicable legislation
o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 33



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

2t obed

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

e  the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies
to understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that
may result in risks of material misstatement.

e the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance
with the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception - the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the
Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended

31 March 2023.

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet
complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual Report.
If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We
are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 34



Commercial in confidence

E. Draft audit opinion

¢t obed

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in January 2023. This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When
reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under
three specified reporting criteria:

J Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
e  Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

J Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its costs and performance to improve
the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three specified reporting criteria,
gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work,
we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Swale Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2023 in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have
completed our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Limited]. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Matt Dean, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London
Date: XX October 2023

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 35



Commercial in confidence

F. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM
work

Dear Councillor Simon Clark,

The original expectation under the approach to VFM arrangements work set out in the 2020 Code of Audit Practice was
that auditors would follow an annual cycle of work, with more timely reporting on VFM arrangements, including issuing
their commentary on VFM arrangements for local government by 30 September each year at the latest. Unfortunately,
due to the on-going challenges impacting on the local audit market, including the need to meet regulatory and other
professional requirements, we have been unable to complete our work as quickly as would normally be expected. The
National Audit Office has updated its guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work on
arrangements to secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our opinions on the financial
statements. This is intended to help ensure as many as possible can be issued in line with national timetables and
legislation.

As a result, we have therefore not yet issued our Auditor’s Annual Report, including our commentary on arrangements to
secure value for money. We now expect to publish our report no later than January 2024.

vt abed

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter constitutes the required audit letter explaining the
reasons for delay.

Yours faithfully

Matt Dean
Key Audit Partner

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 36



Gy abed

0 Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH COUNCIL

Making Swale a better place
Swale Borough Council

Lisa Fillery
Swale House
East Street
Sittingbourne
Kent

ME10 3HT

&) Swale

lisafillery@swale.gov.uk
01795 417267
Grant Thornton UK LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London
ECA2 1AG October 2023

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

Swale Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Swale
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i.  We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 ("the Code"); in particular
the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii.  We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and
these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii.  The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at
fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include valuations of land and buildings
and investment properties, year-end accruals, year-end provisions including NNDR appeals,
impairment loss allowance for debtors, and valuation of defined benefit net pension fund
liabilities. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial

B2 disability
Page 47 B confident

— COMMITTED =—




Vi,

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

XV.

statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the
financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering
alternative, methods, assumptions, or source data that would be equally valid under the financial
reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We
are satisfied that the methods, the data, and the significant assumptions used by us in making
accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and adequately
disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of
pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and
properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been
identified and properly accounted for.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and
the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

We have considered the misclassification and disclosures changes schedules included in your
Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements have been amended for these
misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any
material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that :

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its
operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of
the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its financial statements on
the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions
relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going
concern need to be made in the financial statements

The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material effect
on the Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Page 48



Information Provided

XVi.

XVii.

XViil.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXi.

XXiil.

XXiV.

We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

C. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware
of and that affects the Council and involves:
a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

XXV.

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk
assurance and governance framework, and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant
risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxvi.  The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's
financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial
statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit Committee at its meeting
on 23 October 2023.

Yours faithfully

l@&% W

Lisa Fillery Director of Resources

Signed on behalf of the Council

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH COUNCIL
Making Swale a better place

Annual Financial
Report

for the
year ended

31 March 2023

Lisa Fillery CPFA
Director of Resources

Page 51



Page2 52



Contents

Information Accompanying the Statement of Accounts

Page
Overview 4
Performance Review 5
Annual Governance Statement 17
Auditor’s Report 28
Statement of Responsibilities 29
Statement of Accounts
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 30
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 32
Movement in Reserves Statement 33
Balance Sheet 34
Cash Flow Statement 36
Notes to the Financial Statements
Accounting Policies 37
Pay and Pensions 50
Day to Day Revenue Spending 57
Reserves 59
Long Term Capital Spending 65
Creditors and Debtors 74
Financial Instruments 78
Other 82
Collection Fund 86
Glossary 91

Paae 53



Overview

The Council

Swale Borough Council is located on the county of Kent’s north coast between
Medway, Maidstone and Canterbury, around 45 miles from London, but set in rolling
Kentish countryside, and less than 30 miles from the Channel Tunnel. With an area
of 373 square kilometres and a population of 152,000, Swale includes the towns of
Sittingbourne and Faversham, the Isle of Sheppey, and an extensive rural hinterland.

The Council provides a wide range of services, such as waste collection, recycling,
street cleansing, parking, planning, leisure, homelessness support, housing benefit,
public conveniences and environmental health.

The Council has 47 councillors (also known as ‘Members’) covering 24 wards. Each
Councillor is elected for a term of four years, with the last election on 4 May 2023.
Councillors are elected to represent their constituents and to take decisions upon
Council services and policies. Swale continues to be controlled by a Coalition under
a Committee System implemented from May 2022. The Leader of the Council for the
2022/23 financial year was Councillor Baldock. Following the elections on 4 May
Councillor Gibson is now the Leader of the Council. The Council’s services are
organised into Directorates and Departments.

The Council’'s Corporate Plan “Working Together for a Better Borough” can be found
here: https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/publications/council/corporate-plan

The Council’s priorities are:

building the right homes in the right places and supporting quality jobs for all;
investing in our environment and responding positively to global challenges;
tackling deprivation and creating equal opportunities for everyone;

renewing local democracy and making the council fit for the future.

Chelmsford

London
Southend-on-Sea

............. =l i Rochester

---------------- Maidstone

Faversham Asiford
. L ]
@ @ Tunbridge Wells

Pagé 54


https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/publications/council/corporate-plan

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Narrative Report
Introduction

This narrative report provides a guide to the Council’'s accounts and financial position as of
31 March 2023. It includes:

e An explanation of the Annual Financial Report, and each of the main financial
statements;
e A look back at financial performance in 2022/23;

e Any major events or changes in presentation and accounting that impact on the
accounts; and

e A look at the future financial position and challenges.

Annual Financial Report

Swale Borough Council’'s Annual Financial Report for 2022/23 provides a record of how the
Council has used its financial resources during the year.

The Annual Financial Report has the following sections:

+ the Narrative Report, which will cover financial and non-financial performance;

« an Annual Governance Statement showing how the Council meets set standards
when carrying out its responsibilities;

» areport from Grant Thornton, after they have reviewed the Council’s accounts;
+ the Statement of Accounts — see below; and,
« aglossary to explain any technical terms used in the report.

The Annual Governance Statement

This statement is not part of the Statement of Accounts, but is an accompanying report, and
is therefore included within the Annual Financial Report.

The purpose of the Annual Governance Statement is to assess and demonstrate that there
is a sound system of corporate governance throughout the organisation.

Auditors report

The Council’'s accounts and all relevant documents are subject to review by Grant Thornton
UK LLP - the Council’s external auditors. At the conclusion of their work, the external
auditors provide an independent opinion on whether the financial statements present a “true
and fair view” of the financial position of the Council at the balance sheet date, and of its
income and expenditure for the year. They also report on whether the Council has made
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources.

Page 55



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The main financial statements

The Statement of Accounts, through the main statements and accompanying notes,
provides a record of the Council’s financial position and performance for the year ended 31
March 2023. It has been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 which require the accounts to be prepared and signed by the responsible officer by 31
May 2023.

The format meets the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2022/23 (the Code), supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

The local authority accounting year runs from 1 April to 31 March. Throughout the accounts
figures in brackets represent income or negative figures. The statements are produced
using figures rounded to the nearest thousand. This can lead to rounding variances in
some of the totals included within the statements and the notes to the accounts.

The Statement of Accounts appears on pages 30 to 90. The Expenditure and Funding
Analysis is not a core financial statement but has been included at this stage of the
Statement of Accounts to assist readers with a logical path through the detailed financial
reporting.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis page 30 — this shows the final net spend for each
service for the year and their impact on the Council’s resources and then converts these
figures in accordance with accounting regulations so that they match those in the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

The Council’s core financial statements are listed below along with a brief explanation of
their purpose.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement page 32 — shows all of the
Council’'s spending, income and changes in value in providing its services during the
year in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice.

Movement in Reserves Statement page 33 — shows the movement on all the Council’s
reserves (funds set aside) due to the increase or decrease in the Council’s net worth as
a result of its spending, the income it received, and changes in the value of its assets.

Balance Sheet page 34 — summarises the Council’s financial position at 31 March each
year. It shows the assets (what the Council owns) that the Council holds and its liabilities
(what the Council owes) to other parties, and the Council’s reserves, separated into
those that can be used for future spending (usable reserves) and those created to
reconcile the technical aspects of accounting (unusable reserves).

Cash Flow Statement page 36 — summarises the cash movements in and out of the
Council’s bank accounts over the year.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements on pages 37 to 85 — present information about
the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the accounting policies used.
The notes also disclose information required by the Code that is not presented
elsewhere in the financial statements but is relevant to understanding them.

Collection Fund on pages 86 to 90 — is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory
obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement,

Page 56



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

and accompanying notes, show the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the
collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of
council tax and non-domestic rates.

Financial Performance in 2022/23

This section gives an overview of the financial performance of the Council in 2022/23,
including reasons for significant variances from planned expenditure.

The finances of the Council were less impacted by Covid-19 in 2022/23, as activity levels
largely recovered to expected levels. However, the year was instead impacted by hyper-
inflation and the cost of living crisis in the UK. With these events, and the war in Ukraine,
happening so closely together, it's extremely difficult to differentiate the impact between
these events.

There was no financial support from the government to the Council this year in relation to
Covid-19 recovery, but the Council has continued to receive grant funding to pay over to

residents in the form of the Housing Support Fund and various energy grant schemes, to
help households manage increasing costs.

There were regular reports to Policy and Resources committee and senior management on
the monitoring of spend against budget. In 2022/23 there was an underspend against the
budget of £29,000 after contributions to and from reserves. This includes the planned use of
£1.65m from the budget contingency reserve that was required to support the delivery of a
balanced budget position for the year. The major variances against budget were an
overspend on temporary accommodation, offset by savings on salaries and additional
income, including much higher investment income earned in the latter part of the financial
year as a result of increasing interest rates. A report will go to Policy and Resources
Committee on 12 July 2023 which details how the Council spent its money against its
budget and how this expenditure was financed.

The employment market remains buoyant, although is now showing signs of loosening.
This strength in the employment market has resulted in difficulties recruiting to some
vacancies, so although staff vacancies have led to financial savings in 2022/23 this is not
an ongoing saving. The vacancies do need to be filled in order for the Council to deliver the
required services.

Page 57



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Revenue Expenditure and Income for 2022/23

The table below shows spend against budget for the Council’s service departments:

Over/
(Under)
Budget Spend Spend
2022/23  2022/23  2022/23
£000 £000 £000
Chief Executive 247 232 (15)
Policy, Governance, Transformation & Customer Services 1,784 1,706 (78)
Director of Regeneration 172 178 6
Director of Resources 133 131 (2)
Housing & Community 4,563 5,660 1,097
Planning 965 1,182 217
Environment & Leisure 7,130 6,662 (467)
Regeneration & Economic Development 668 681 13
Finance & Procurement 811 846 35
Revenues & Benefits 1,060 1,099 40
Environmental Health 642 658 17
Information Technology 1,377 1,318 (59)
Internal Audit Shared Services 194 135 (59)
Human Resources 491 404 (87)
Legal 550 430 (120)
Net contributions to / (from) reserves (2,735) (2,791) (57)
Corporate Items 3,948 3,451 (497)
Cost of Services 22,000 21,983 (17)
Financed by:
Budget Contingency Reserve (1,651) (1,651) 0
Council Tax (9,263) (9,263) 0
Other Grants 0 (8) (8)
Services Grant (488) (492) 4)
Business Rates (9,072) (9,071) 1
New Homes Bonus Grant (1,407) (1,407) 0)
Revenue Support Grant (119) (120) (1)
(Surplus) in Year (0) (29) (29)
Budget Actual  Variance
2022/23  2022/23  2022/23
£000 £000 £000
General Fund Balance 1 April 2022 (3,074) (3,074) 0
Surplus in year 0 (29) (29)
General Fund Balance 31 March 2023 (3,074) (3,103) (29)

The above table shows that there was an increase in the General Fund of £29,000. The
Council’s policy is to maintain a balance of at least £1.5 million in the General Fund. The
balance of £3.103 million at 31 March 2023 represents 11.5% of the Cost of Services for
2022/23 and is therefore deemed to be at an adequate level by the Head of Finance and

Procurement.

Page 58




Reviewing the Council’s Performance

In addition, the Council:

e collected £99m of Council Tax for Police, Fire, Kent County Council (KCC), Parish
Councils and itself (E93m in 2021/22);

e collected £51m of Business Rates for the Government, Fire, KCC, and itself (E48m in
2021/22);

e paid out £31m on benefits and received £31m in grant (E32m paid, £32m received in
2021/22).

The main variances between the budget and the outturn are set out below by service.

Activity Variance (£000) Explanation of variance
()=underspend
+ve = overspend

Policy, Governance, (78) | The variance is a result of underspends
Transformation and on staff costs and members allowances.
Customer Services

Housing and 1,097 | The variance is largely due to an
Community increase in the cost of temporary
accommodation. This was a mixture of
an increase in demand, as well as an
increase in the cost of placements.

Planning 217 | The variance is due to increased costs
of staffing due to difficulties in recruiting
permanent staff, this is a net position as
additional income was also achieved
during the year.

Environment and (468) | Parking activity has recovered well from
Leisure the recent setbacks, and the final
position was therefore better than
anticipated. The introduction of charges
for replacement wheeled bins also
resulted in an underspend on the
purchase of replacement bins.

Shared Services (309) | There were a number of staff vacancies
across the shared services that created
savings within the year.

Corporate Items (497) | The main reason for the variance was
higher than anticipated investment
income due to the increased bank rate.
This was slightly reduced by additional
insurance costs that were above the
budget level.

Page 59



Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Capital Spending for 2022/23

Where spending is on an asset which will benefit the Council over a number of years, it is
called capital. It is funded mainly by Government grants, borrowing, reserves and capital
receipts (money from selling land and other assets). The revenue impact of implementing
the capital programme is reflected in the revenue budget.

The Council’s spend on capital schemes in 2022/23 was £6.967 million. The outturn

position of the capital programme is detailed in the table below, along with a breakdown of

how it was funded.

Disabled Facilities Grants

Swale House Refurbishment

Redevelopment of Masters House, Sheerness
Queenborough & Rushenden Klondyke Land
Improvement

Open Spaces Play Equipment

New Parking Meters

Local Housing Company - Business Planning Work
Coronation Clock Tower Sheerness

St Micheal's Church Boundary Wall

Play Improvements

ICT Infrastructure & Equipment Replacement
Leisure Centres

Public Toilets

High Streets

Other Services

Total

Sources of Funding

Capital grants and other contributions
Earmarked reserves

Borrowing

Capital receipts

Direct revenue funding

Total Capital Funding

Revised Actual Variance
Budget Spending Slippage to
2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 Budget
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
5,720 1,679 4,041 0
1,955 1,673 282 0
1,383 1,383 0 0
1,253 1,253 0 0
580 240 340 0
112 112 0 0
360 97 263 0
144 83 61 0
120 70 50 0
214 33 181 0
219 27 192 0
305 17 288 0
392 0 392 0
248 0 248 0
1,225 300 925 0
14,230 6,967 7,263 0
3,338
1,812
1,660
28
129
6,967

The main capital expenditure items in 2022/23 were Disabled Facilities Grants, Swale
House refurbishment, and the redevelopment of Master’'s House, Sheerness.

There are currently no anticipated under or overspends within the capital programme, and
unspent budget in the year of £7.26 million will therefore be slipped into 2023/24. The

reason for the slippage is mainly due to the spend on disabled facilities grants being

dependent on applications received.

Pageo60




Reviewing the Council’s Performance

How the Council Manages its Surplus Funds

The Council’s total investment averaged £30 million during 2022/23 (£38 million for
2021/22) and closed at £9.4 million at 31 March 2023 (see Note 42, Table 4) (E27 million at
31 March 2022). The Council achieved a return of 1.88% for 2022/23, amounting to
£704,000 (£114,600 in 2021/22).

The Council meets Government and accounting requirements on treasury management
which emphasise the security of funds. The policy is to avoid unnecessary risk, so the
Council only puts money with the safest and most secure financial institutions and a number
of very large, wide-ranging money market funds (these are well rated, highly diversified
pooled investment vehicles).

At 31 March 2023, the Council had two loans of £5 million each, from other local authorities
at an average rate of 0.90%.

How the Council Collects Tax

The Council collects Council Tax on behalf of Kent County Council (KCC), Police, Fire, and
Parishes, and Business Rates for the Government, KCC, and Fire, which is recorded in the
Collection Fund which can be seen on page 86. At the year-end, this account had a surplus
balance of £0.5 million (deficit balance of £10.3m at 31 March 2022).

Transparency of the Council’s Spending

By law, all Councillors must fill in a Declaration of Members’ Interest form to register their
financial or other interests. The Monitoring Officer maintains the full Register. The public
can see it on the Council’s website at http://www.swale.gov.uk/reqgister-of-interests/.

The Government has promoted how local authorities make information on senior staff
salaries and payments to the Council’s suppliers available to the public. This information
can be found on the Council’'s website at: http://www.swale.gov.uk/transparency/.

Pensions

The Council is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which KCC
administers on the Council’s behalf. Every three years the value of this fund is valued by a
firm of actuaries (professionally qualified independent consultants). This valuation
estimates how much money will be needed to pay pensions in the future and compares this
to the expected income. A valuation is carried out every three years and this sets the
amount that the Council has to pay to the Kent Pension Fund.

However, the pensions note in the accounts (Note 9) is based upon a different method of
valuing the Pension Fund from the one described above. Instead, the value of pensions in
the accounts is based on an International Accounting Standard (IAS 19) using different
assumptions from the approach described above. In the accounts, the pension deficit
according to IAS 19 has decreased from £63 million at 31 March 2022 to £14 million at 31
March 2023. However, this IAS 19 approach does not affect the amount that the Council
has to pay to the Kent Pension Fund which is set by the results of the three year valuation
described above.

Page 61


http://www.swale.gov.uk/register-of-interests/
http://www.swale.gov.uk/transparency/

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The table below compares these two differing methods of valuation for the past few years.

Year IAS 19 Review 3 Year Review
Pension Deficit Pension Deficit

£'000 £'000
2020/21 66,646 15,453
2021/22 62,604 15,453
2022/23 13,924 8,460

The reduction of the IAS 19 deficit is in line with our expectations based on our maturity
level and the increase in discount rates.

The reasons for the contrast in the valuations between the two methods are the different
methods and assumptions underlying their calculations.

Reports on the Kent Pension Fund are available from: KCC, Treasury and Investments,
County Hall, Maidstone, Kent ME14 1XQ or by using the following link:
https://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/

Significant changes to the local authority financial regime

New Accounting Policies in 2022/23

There were no new significant accounting changes or policies that were adopted for the
2022/23 Accounts.

Future Accounting Policies

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authority
(Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) have decided to defer the
implementation of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 16 on Leases until 1
April 2024. However, the Council will consider whether it wishes to adopt this standard for
2023/24 as this will require a review of the Council’s existing lease arrangements to
determine what effect the new standard will have on their value in future accounts.

Future financial position and challenges

The future of local government funding remains very uncertain, with little to no information
available on funding for district councils from April 2024 onwards.

Fundamental changes planned to the funding basis of councils have been deferred yet
again, with expectation being that there will be no changes made before the next general
election. No announcement has been made about the baseline reset or any of the other
business rates reforms. There was no announcement on the Fair Funding Review and the
growing sense that it too will be delayed until at least 2025/26.

The budget strategy is intended to ensure that the Council has a balanced and sustainable
budget that provides the financial resources needed to implement the key priorities.

Page262


https://www.kentpensionfund.co.uk/

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Medium Term Financial Plan

The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council on 22 February 2023 forecast a
revenue budget gap of £2.0 million in 2023/24, growing to a gap of £4.3 million in 2024/25
and therefore this will need to be addressed in future budget rounds. It is not sustainable to
rely on significant transfers from reserves to support the base budget position.

Future budgetary issues include: inflation, new waste contract, potential changes to central
Government funding of local authorities, impact of the local and UK economy on business
rates income, increasing costs of temporary accommodation and supporting homeless
applications, and reducing reliance on reserves.

The Council seeks to maintain a minimum of £1.5m as its General Fund balance and there
is no reason to change this - the balance at 31 March 2023 was £3.1m. The Council holds

earmarked reserves for specific purposes. The Director of Resources’ view is that the level
of reserves and balances held by the Council are at a reasonable level.

The Medium Term Financial Plan is detailed in the Council’s report on setting the Budget
and Council Tax for 2023/24 which was approved by Council meeting on 22 February 2023
which can be found on the Council’'s website here: Agenda for Council on Wednesday, 22
February 2023, 7.00 pm (swale.gov.uk)

Capital Strategy

The Capital Strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital
financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local public
services.

Looking ahead to 2023/24 there will be four major capital projects which are reflected in the
Capital Budget:

« Housing company - in October 2020 Cabinet agreed to establish Swale Rainbow
Homes Ltd. The outline business case envisaged the Council providing up to £23
million of funding through loans to support the delivery of new homes. The exact
arrangements for the drawdown of this funding will follow the detailed planning and
procurement phases. The cost of the borrowing will be wholly met by the company.

» Purchase of temporary accommodation — the Housing and Health Committee on 17
January 2023 agreed a budget of £11 million to purchase up to 50 properties within
the borough to accommodate households in need of housing. The funding for this
project will be a reallocation of temporary accommodation spend to cover the capital
financing costs.

» Levelling Up Scheme — the council has been successful in its bid for funding from the
Levelling Up scheme. This project will use funding to improve health, education,
leisure and employment opportunities in Sheerness through the Sheerness Revival
project. This is expected to be a two-year capital project, with the budget profiled
across 2023/24 and 2024/25.

» Purchase of waste vehicle fleet — as agreed by Council on 4 January 2023, £7m of
council funding will be used to purchase a fleet of vehicles for the new waste

Page 63


https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3754
https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3754

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

collection and street cleansing contract. This is the most economically
advantageous method for securing the vehicles and provides resilience in the
delivery of the contract.

The Director of Resources believes that the Capital Strategy and Capital Programme
proposed are sustainable. The capital strategy and programme are detailed in the
Council’s report on setting the Budget and Council Tax for 2023/24 which was approved by
Council meeting on 22 February 2023 which can be found on the Council’s website here:
Agenda for Council on Wednesday, 22 February 2023, 7.00 pm (swale.gov.uk)

Conclusions

It has been a challenging year for the Council, but financial plans have been substantially
delivered and plans are in place to help identify and deliver savings in future years whilst
continuing to strive to minimise any negative impact on services.

I would like to thank all staff within the Council for their efforts in delivery quality services
largely within the Council’s financial plans. The hard work of all staff puts the Council in the
best possible position to deal with the serious financial challenges that we continue to face,
and | have faith that staff will strive to meet these challenges.

Particular thanks are due to the finance team for their work in producing this Statement of
Accounts in a very short timescale, in a period when their workload substantially exceeded
their available work hours.

Claire Stanbury CPFA
Date: 31 May 2023
Head of Finance and Procurement

Page+64


https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3754

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

Reviewing Performance
The Council’s Performance

The Council continues to monitor its performance against a range of performance indicators
and, where possible, to benchmark its performance with those of other local authorities. In
addition to numerous indicators in use within specialist teams, Members, through Policy and
Resources Committee, and Management monitored a set of 49 ‘corporate’ indicators on a
regular basis. The Council publishes a summary performance report each month on its
website at http://www.swale.gov.uk/managing-performance/ .

The Council’s People

The Council has developed its values to describe clearly how the Council does things and
all employees should be aware how the Council expects them to work. The Council has an
engagement plan to ensure that staff know where they fit in and the importance of their role
in delivering the priorities of the Council. An important part of the engagement plan is the
approach to staff communications which are regular and made through a variety of
communication channels.

The Workforce Strategy that was developed and implemented in 2019 includes four key
themes to reflect the Council’s revised priorities and the possible opportunities and
challenges in the future. This is available from the Council website at
https://www.swale.gov.uk/workforce-strateqy-2019-t0-2022/. The strategy is due to be
reviewed and updated during 2023/24.

The monitoring of workforce information by SMT ensured a focus on sickness absence.
During 2022/23, the amount of time lost to sickness was an average of 8.63 days per
employee (2021/22 7.5 days per employee), which is slightly above the average for public
sector organisations of 7.7 days. The Council has continued to provide a proactive
approach to sickness management and has continually enhanced an active programme of
well-being initiatives to encourage staff to take responsibility for their own health.

How the Council Manages Data

The Council has a responsibility to securely keep the personal data it holds. In 2022/23
there were 32 reported incidents which amounted to breaches of the Data Protection Act
and 11 near misses. Each case is investigated fully before the Council’s Data Protection
Officer decides on the appropriate response. In 2022/23 it was not necessary to report any
incidents to the Information Commissioner. The decision in all cases was based on
conclusions reached by the Information Commissioner in previous years and demonstrated
that it had taken effective and efficient action in minimising the impact of the breaches
reported.

How the Council Manages Risk

The Council has a well embedded approach to risk management, and this is reflected in the
Risk Management Framework. The framework was reviewed and updated in 2022/23 and
approved by Audit Committee in July 2022. The framework details the Council’'s approach
to the management of corporate and operational risks and is available to all officers and
Members.

The risk management process is coordinated by Mid Kent Audit and regularly reported to
SMT and Policy and Resources Committee. Audit Committee also maintain an oversight of
the process.

Page 65


http://www.swale.gov.uk/managing-performance/
https://www.swale.gov.uk/workforce-strategy-2019-to-2022/

Reviewing the Council’s Performance

The last annual report on the Council’s risk management arrangements was taken to Audit
Committee on 17 April 2023 and can be found here: SBC Annual Risk Report 2022-23.

Mid Kent Audit continues to provide guidance, advice and works across the Council to
improve risk culture and understanding of effective risk management.

Pages66


https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s25728/Annual%20Risk%20Management%20Report%20-%20Cover.pdf

Annual Governance Statement

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

2.1

Scope of Responsibility

Swale Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that:
(i) its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards;
(i)  public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; and
(i)  public money is used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure ‘Best Value’ in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In meeting this obligation, the Council has a responsibility for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of
its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Council works to an updated Local Code of Corporate Governance based upon
the 2016 Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE)
Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. There are no
changes to the Code for this year but it notes that it is important that the Annual
Governance Statement is kept up to date at time of publication. In March 2022 the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Practice Oversight
Panel issued an advisory note on governance. The note emphasises that all local
authorities should reflect upon any weaknesses in governance identified and identify
learning points to mitigate the risk of similar issues arising. In addition, CIPFA
requires councils to disclose compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code
and identify any outstanding areas for improvement or change.

This Statement explains how Swale Borough Council has complied with the principles
of good governance and reviews the effectiveness of these arrangements. It also
meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (Amended).

The May 2019 elections resulted in control of the Council passing to a five party
coalition comprising the Labour, Swale Independent Alliance, Liberal Democrats,
Green and Independent groups. The administration has a very well defined
programme which they are implementing. There was a planned change in the
leadership of the administration in May 2022 with Councillor Mike Baldock, who was
previously the Deputy Leader, replacing Councillor Roger Truelove as Leader of the
Council.

This year has seen a change in the deputy section 151 officer for the Council. The
post holder left the Councils employment in July 2022, the role was covered by an
interim between August and December 2022, and a permanent replacement started in
late November 2022.

Impact of external factors on the Council
The last three years has seen external factors have a significant impact on the activity

and finances of the Council. The main issues have been Covid-19, the war in
Ukraine, and a cost of living crisis in the UK.

Page 67




Annual Governance Statement

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

Covid-19 was the most significant event this country has dealt with since the end of
the Second World War. Government looked to councils to take a major role in the
response primarily in supporting the most vulnerable in the local community. Activity
has largely recovered to an expected level, the war in Ukraine and the cost of living
crisis are now having an impact, and it is difficult to differentiate the impact between all
of these global events.

Whilst activity has largely returned to normal from Covid-19, there are impacts of
these events being felt in 2022/23, with council tax rebates being issued early in
2022/23 and the energy support grants now being processed for those customers
without a direct relationship with their energy supplier.

Post Covid lockdown, staff continue to work from home on an average of three days a
week. IT technology of the Council continues to support the hybrid approach to home
and office based work and the previous decision to move all staff to work on laptops
was highly beneficial. All councillors were also allocated a Swale laptop. In general
staff adapted very well to working from home. This also proved beneficial during the
autumn of 2022 when staff were required to work from home again whilst some of the
refurbishment work was carried out on Swale House.

Council committee meetings are now operating to a normal calendar of meetings, with
the ability for officers and members to join remotely, albeit without voting rights of in
person attendance. Whilst the offices were closed in the autumn of 2022, meetings
were held at a local alternative venue.

Reflecting on the experience with Covid a new delegation to the Chief Executive was
agreed in January 2022, enabling her in emergencies or other circumstances in which
the council or a committee cannot meet, to take decisions which would otherwise be
taken by members. The decisions will have regard as fully as possible to the views of
the members who would otherwise have made the decision. This delegation remains
in place.

The council is having to manage the cost of living crisis and the uncertainty of the high
inflation levels. This has implications for both the cost of council services and cost of
living for our residents. Budget provision has been made for a significant increase in
inflation but the uncertainty around inflation levels is a significant risk to the budget.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and
values, by which the Council is directed and controlled, and its activities through which
it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives, and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives, and therefore can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to:

() identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Council’s policies, aims
and objectives;

Pages68




Annual Governance Statement

(i) evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised; and,

(i) manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

3.3 The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31
March 2023, and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.

4. The Council’s Governance Framework

4.1 A brief description of the key elements of the Council’'s governance framework is
described below.

Communicating the Council’s Vision

4.2 In October 2020 Council agreed a new Corporate Plan “Working together for a better
borough”. The plan is structured around four high level priorities, each containing a
number of specific objectives. The four priorities are:

()  Building the right homes in the right places and supporting quality jobs for all.
(i) Investing in our environment and responding positively to global challenges.
(i) Tackling deprivation and creating equal opportunities for everyone.

(iv) Renewing local democracy and making the council fit for the future.

4.3 Area Committee meetings continued in 2022/23. These are intended to have a local
focus and to more widely engage councillors and the community, with four committees
meeting quarterly.

Management of Resources

4.4 The Council seeks to use its resources efficiently and obtains value for money via a
number of arrangements. These include:

() A medium term financial plan and annual budget process that ensures that
financial resources are directed to the Council’s priorities.

(i) A financial monitoring process which closely monitors expenditure and income
with detailed quarterly reporting to SMT and Policy & Resources Committee.

(i) The Special Project Fund created by the new administration to fund public
realm projects and support the delivery of other administration priorities. This is
now supplemented by the Improvement & Resilience Fund linked to the delivery
of administration priorities.

(iv) A capital strategy again directed at administration priorities in particular
increasing the supply of affordable housing.

(v) An annual review of fees and charges.
Member and Officer Working Arrangements

4.5 Roles and responsibilities for governance are defined and allocated so that
accountability for decisions made and actions taken are clear. In May 2022 the
Council moved to a committee system, replacing the Cabinet system that was
previously in place. There are five service committees, each chaired by a member

Page 69




Annual Governance Statement

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

of the administration and supported by a vice chair. The transition was informed by
the work of a cross-party constitution review working group, who developed
proposals for the detailed working of the new system.

The Council also appoints a number of committees to discharge the Council's
regulatory responsibilities. These arrangements, and the delegated responsibilities
of officers, are fully set out in the Council’'s Constitution.

The Constitution also includes both a Member and an Officer Code of Conduct,
which describe and regulate the way in which members and officers should interact
to work effectively together.

During 2022/23 the Council adopted a new councillor code of conduct. We are now
operating the Local Government Association model.

The Council’s Audit Committee has a remit consistent with those identified in the
CIPFA publication ‘Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities’. It
provides assurance to the Council on the effectiveness of its governance
arrangements, risk management framework, and internal control environment. The
Committee regularly reviews the internal audit work programme, the results of
internal audit work, and management’s implementation of audit recommendations.

A central role on governance issues is undertaken by the Council’s three statutory
officers; the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer.

The Chief Executive (and Head of Paid Service) is accountable for the delivery of the
Council’'s services, the work of the Council’'s employees, and the work undertaken for
the Council by a variety of partners and contractors who deliver a wide range of
services to the community. The role of Chief Executive is a permanent appointment,
which requires the approval of the full Council and is currently held by Larissa Reed.

Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, as amended by

paragraph 24 of schedule 5 to the Local Government Act 2000, requires the Council

to designate one of its senior officers as the Monitoring Officer. During 2022/23 the

Head of Policy, Communications and Customer Services David Clifford was

responsible for:

()  Ensuring that the Council acts and operates within the law. He has a duty to
report to the whole Council if he believes any action or proposal has been or is
likely to be contrary to the rule of law.

(i)  Maintaining arrangements to support the Council’s functions and activities,
including regular reviews of the Council's Constitution.

(i) Dealing with complaints against members under the Code of Conduct,
supporting the Council's Standards Committee, and helping to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct by Council members, officers, partners and
contractors.

(iv) Establishing and maintaining registers of interests, gifts and hospitality for
members and officers.

(v) Receiving reports and taking action under the Council's Confidential Reporting
Code, which supports whistleblowing by staff.

The Director of Resources, as the Section 151 Officer appointed under the 1972
Local Government Act, carried overall responsibility for the financial administration of

Pageo70




Annual Governance Statement

4.14

4.15

4.16

the Council. This role is held by Lisa Fillery. The Council’s governance
arrangements relating to this role comply with those arrangements set out in the
CIPFA statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government
(2010).

The role of Head of Internal Audit is assigned to the post of the Head of Audit
Partnership - an arrangement covering the three Mid Kent Services Councils (Swale,
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Borough Councils) and Ashford Borough Council.
Between January and December 2022, the position was covered by an interim Head
of Audit. The role was filled on a permanent basis from December 2022. This role is
responsible for the Council’s internal audit service, including drawing up the Internal
Audit Strategy and related annual plan, and giving the annual Audit Opinion. The
Council’'s arrangements conform to Public Sector International Audit Standards, as
independently assessed by CIPFA. The Standards are the “proper practices in
relation to internal control” referenced in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
(Amended). The Head of Audit Partnership’s operational responsibilities are set out
in the Internal Audit Charter and are consistent with the independence requirements
set out in the Standards. The Head of Audit Partnership role also conforms to the
principles set out in the CIPFA Statement on the Role of Head of Internal Audit
(2019).

The Council has clearly set out terms and conditions for the remuneration of
members and officers, and there is an effective structure for managing the process of
review. A Scheme of Members’ Allowances has been set by the Council, having
regard to a report of an Independent Panel made up of nhon-Councillors. The Council
sets and publishes a ‘Pay Policy Statement’ which provides transparency with regard
to the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees. The ‘Pay Policy
Statement’ is reviewed annually.

All employees have clear conditions of employment, and job descriptions which set
out their roles and responsibilities.

Promoting Values and Upholding High Standards of Conduct and Behaviour

4.17

4.18

4.19

The Council has a Standards Committee to promote high standards of member
conduct. Elected members have to agree to follow a Code of Conduct to ensure high
standards in the way they undertake their duties. As referred to above, a new code
of conduct was approved and members are now working to the LGA model.

Officer behaviour is governed by the Officer Code of Conduct. The Code has been
formulated to provide a set of standards of conduct expected of employees at work
and the link between that work and their private lives.

The Council takes fraud, corruption and maladministration seriously, and as such has
established policies and processes which aim to prevent or deal with such
occurrences. These include:

()  An Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy.

(i) A Whistleblowing Policy.

(i) Various HR policies regarding discipline of staff involved in such incidents.
(iv) Various procurement policies.

Page 71




Annual Governance Statement

4.20

(v) A corporate complaints procedure exists to receive and respond to any
complaints received.

Arrangements exist to ensure that members and employees are not influenced in
their decision-making by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with
different stakeholders. These include:

() Registers of disclosable pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests;

(i) Declarations of disclosable pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests at the start of
each meeting in which discussions involve a matter in which a member has an
interest;

(i) Register of interests for officers;

(iv) Registers of gifts and hospitality for members and officers;
(v) An Equalities Scheme and Equal Opportunities Policies; and,
(vi) Member induction and ongoing member training.

Taking Informed and Transparent Decisions and Managing Risk

4.21

4.22

4.23

The Council’s decision-making processes are clear, open and transparent. The
Council’'s Constitution sets out how the Council operates and the processes for policy
and decision-making which is now operated under a committee system. Agendas
and minutes of all meetings are published on the Council’s website.

The Council provides decision-makers with full and timely access to relevant
information. The committee report template requires information to be provided
explaining the legal, financial and risk implications of decisions, as well as inter alia
implications for the corporate priorities, and any equality and diversity implications.

The Council has a well embedded approach to the management of risk and this is
reflected in the Risk Management Framework which was reviewed, updated and
approved by Audit Committee in July 2022. Policy and Resources committee
receives regular reports on the Council’s key risks, and the Audit Committee
maintains an oversight of the process.

Developing the Capacity and Capability of Officers and Members

4.24

4.25

4.26

The Council recognises that the success of its business is built upon the knowledge,
expertise, and commitment of its workforce. Development and retention of staff
therefore remains a priority for the Council. The use of the Check-In system for staff
performance and well-being management is reported to SMT on a quarterly basis, to
ensure that the use has been embedded since its introduction in 2021/22.

In October 2021, the Council held a staff survey using the B-Heard Survey facilitated
by Best Companies Ltd. The results ranked Swale within the top 100 companies to
work for across the UK within our sector. Whilst the results were positive, there are
areas for improvement. A plan of action was devised by the staff engagement panel
and a member working group, and management are working towards the
implementation of those actions.

In response to the B-Heard survey a Leadership Development Programme was
initiated from September 2022. The initial training programme ran until March 2023

Pagez272




Annual Governance Statement

4.27

4.28

with the Council senior officer leadership team embarking on a programme of
development leadership training to make a Council fit for the future.

The Council engaged an external company to work with the Planning Team through
a process of cultural transformation. The Council wanted to look at ways to improve
the service in order to deliver at the speed, consistency and service level expected
from stakeholders and members, to change the service perception and ensure there
was confidence in the planning process. They also worked with the team to reduce
the work in progress, and increase morale and well-being. The work focused on
developing a shared understanding and leadership at all levels so that the team are
empowered to lead the change. Whilst the external support has now ceased, the
team are continuing to make changes to improve the service, with new personnel at
a senior level leading that change.

The cross-party Member Development Working Group takes an overview of the
approach to member development.

Engagement with Local People and Other Stakeholders to Ensure Robust Public
Accountability

4.29

4.30

4.31

The Council engages with partners and stakeholders through various partnerships to
ensure collaboration on strategic issues and joint responsibility for working together
for the benefit of the residents of Swale.

The Council also engages with the voluntary, community and business sectors,
working closely with Swale CVS and communicating through appropriate networks.
It also disseminates and incorporates information about the Council within various e-
bulletins and newsletters that go to these groups.

In addition, the Council uses a variety of corporate communications channels to
engage with and inform local people about the work of the Council and its decisions
including:

()  Ensuring the Council provides an accessible website for delivering online
services, providing a comprehensive information source and easy access to
transparency data.

(i)  Transparent processes for undertaking consultations, public meetings, Council
and Committee meetings with free public access to consultation documents and
responses, meeting agendas, reports and minutes via the Council website.

(i)  Publishing and distributing ‘Inside Swale’ magazine to 64,000 households twice
a year to provide a trusted source of Council news and information.

(iv) Comprehensive use of official social media and email bulletins to promote the
Council services and engage with stakeholders, responding to local peoples’
comments, questions and concerns online.

(v) Providing an ‘Ask the leader’ channel to enable any stakeholder the opportunity

to engage directly with the leadership, with all questions and responses openly
published on the Council website.

Page 73




Annual Governance Statement

Outcomes and value for money

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

Much of this document is concerned with processes for governance and promoting
internal control. But it is essential to consider to what extent do the organisation’s
governance arrangements support the achievement of outcomes and delivery of
value for money.

From a financial perspective the 2022/23 outturn is an underspend of £29,000. The
low level of Revenue Support Grant is highly disadvantageous to a Council such as
Swale with both a low absolute level of Council tax, a relatively low Council tax base
and high levels of need. Given the highly constrained revenue budget the
administration has continued to use one off funds to pump-prime the achievement of
their priorities. The savings proposals agreed for the 2022/23 budget have been
delivered, and the reported overspends for the year are not related to the agreed
budget reductions.

Despite external factors previously discussed the Council’s work in the year once
again good progress has been made across a range of administration priorities:

0] Constitutional reform — Committee system introduced from May 2022 with
service committees now being the decision makers for their areas of
responsibility. Area Committees continued during the year with a more local
focus.

(i) Local housing company - Rainbow Homes has been established to build
affordable homes. Work is ongoing to revise the initial business plans that
were produced pre Covid.

(i)  Homelessness and rough sleeping - more resources for prevention of
homelessness and rough sleeping, with a project having started to improve
the provision of temporary accommodation in the district.

(iv)  Climate change emergency action plan.

(v) Improvements to town centres, coastal amenities, open spaces, visitor
attractions and heritage public realm in the borough.

(vi)  Support to community projects across the borough.

(vii)  Spirit of Sittingbourne project for Sittingbourne delivered, with work ongoing to
let the remaining vacant units within the site.

(viii)  Refurbishment work largely completed for Masters House and Swale House.

(ix)  Successful in our bid for £20m of Levelling Up Funding for the Sheerness
Revival project, with the project now underway.

Progress on the new Local Plan has been paused awaiting further clarity and
direction from central government in anticipation of further changes being introduced
to policy, guidance and legislation as a result of the Environment Act and the
Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill and changes to the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Pages74




Annual Governance Statement

4.36

4.37

During 2022/23 an extension was granted to the current waste contract to enable the
smooth transition to a new waste contract. This was required due to external factors
impacting upon the acquisition of the new fleet required. After 18 months of planning
and procurement the new contract was also awarded during the year, which will
result in a change in supplier in March 2024.

The 2023/24 budget position had looked extremely difficult with significant pressures
in service provision arising from the extension to the existing waste contract,
tendering and procurement of a new waste contract, increased costs for
homelessness temporary accommodation and continuing high levels of inflation.
Early engagement with the member budget working group helped focus the areas for
Heads of Service to propose savings that helped to offset some of these pressures.
Once again, when final notification of government funding was received a lower than
initially planned use of Reserves meant that a balanced budget was achieved. The
Council still faces a very significant funding gap for 2024/25 and is unlikely to benefit
from significant extra Government financial support, the uncertainty of which for
district councils threatens both the delivery of core business and administration
priorities. A savings plan will be included in the budget preparation and Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) work for 2024/25 as agreed by the administration during
the last budget round.

CIPFA Financial Management Code

4.38

4.39

5.1

5.2

In October 2019 CIPFA published their Financial Management (FM) Code which “is
designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist local
authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. For the first time the FM
Code sets out the standards of financial management for local authorities”.

For the 2022/23 accounts the Council is required to disclose its compliance with the
FM Code and identify any outstanding areas for improvement or change. Given the
financial crisis all councils have faced due to the external factors referenced above
there has been less attention paid to the Code. However, Swale compares well
against the Code as most standards are built into our business as usual processes.
As in previous years the Chief Executive and Director of Resources will be leading
on ensuring that the financial sustainability of the authority in the longer term is
addressed in the future budget and medium term financial planning.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance framework, including
the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by managers
within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of
the governance environment, through the work of internal audit, and by comments
made by the external auditors and other inspection agencies.

The processes applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
governance include:

(i) The work of the Audit Committee.
(i)  The work of the Standards Committee.

(i) The operation of the Council’s performance management frameworks, including
an Annual Report and the wider approach to risk management.

Page 75




Annual Governance Statement

(iv) The work of Internal Audit as an assurance function that provides an
independent and objective opinion to the Council on its control environment.

(v) The external auditor’s opinion report on the Council’s financial statements, and
his conclusion on whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to
secure efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the Value for Money

conclusion).

(vi) The roles of the Council’s Statutory Officers.

(vii) The corporate complaints procedure.

(viii) The anti-fraud and corruption and whistleblowing framework.

5.3 To further support the review of its effectiveness, the council engaged in a LGA
corporate peer review in 2023. The aims of the review were as follows:

(i) Assess the general health of the council.

(i) Request specific feedback on the following:

a) The number, input levels and scrutiny function of the new committee structure.

b) Whether we are doing the right things to ensure members and officers work

well together.

c) How can we achieve the savings required whilst still delivering member

priorities.

(i) Positive recommendations for a new administration.

(iv) Provide constructive challenge where required.

5.4 The feedback from the Peer Review is scheduled to be reported to the Council
following the May 2023 election in order to inform the new administration, who will

take forward any agreed actions.

5.5 Inthe 2021/22 Annual Governance Statement three main areas for attention moving
forward were identified. The latest position on these is as follows:

Issue

Updated position

Delivery of a smooth transition from
Cabinet to Committee system.

In May 2022 the Council moved to the Committee
system, with the creation of five service
committees, plus full council, and the statutory
committees.

Produce a robust savings plan to
support the delivery of a balanced
budget.

The 2023/24 balanced budget included savings
proposals of £2.8m plus a further £2m contribution
from reserves. Ongoing pressures for 2024/25
including uncertainty over local government
funding mean that further savings plans need to be
developed to deliver a balanced position for the
future.

Develop a member-officer protocol to
support good governance.

The member code of conduct was reviewed and a
new code, in line with the LGA model, was adopted
in February 2023.

Pages76




Annual Governance Statement

6. Significant Governance Issues
6.1 There were no significant governance weaknesses in 2022/23.

6.2 The main areas for member and senior management attention in the coming year
are:

(i) Produce a robust savings plan to support the delivery of a balanced budget.
(i) Develop a member-officer protocol to support good governance.

(i) Delivery of the new senior management structure including the appointment of
a new Monitoring Officer.

(iv) Delivery of the Sheerness Revival LUF project in line with agreed timescales
and government reporting requirements.

(v) Planning and implementation of the new waste contract in March 2024.
(vi) Develop an action plan to deliver on findings received from the Peer Review.

Agreed:

Leader of the Council Chief Executive

Page 77




Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Swale Borough Council

Grant Thornton will be carrying out an audit on these accounts and reporting to the Audit
Committee on 23 October 2023.

Pages/8




Statement of Responsibilities

The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required to:

« make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In
this Council, that officer is the Director of Resources;

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets; and

e approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Director of Resources’ Responsibilities

As the Director of Resources, | am the S151 Officer and am responsible for the preparation
of the Council’s 2022/23 Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set
out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy / Local Authority
(Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, | have:
« selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
« made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
o complied with the local authority Code;
« kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

« taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

| confirm that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Council at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Lisa Fillery CPFA Date: October 2023
Director of Resources

Certification of the Chairman of the Audit Committee

| confirm that the adoption process for the 2022/23 Statement of Accounts has been
formally completed and that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023
was approved by Swale Borough Council in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations (England) 2015 at the meeting of the Audit Committee on 23 October 2023.

Councillor Simon Clark Date: October 2023
Chair of the Audit Committee

Page 79



Explanatory Note to the Accounts: Expenditure and Funding Analysis —
Change in Spend Per Department from Reported Basis to Accounting Basis

2021/22 2022/23
Net exp Adjustments for: Net exp Net exp Adjustments for: Net exp
charged to  Capital Pensions  Other in the charged to  Capital Pensions  Other in the
the General CIES the General CIES
Fund Fund
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
229 0 a7 0 276 Chief Executive 232 0 25 0 257
2,172 4 307 77 2,560 Policy, Governance, 1,706 3 102 32 1,844
Transformation & Customer
Services
485 0 41 0 526 Director of Regeneration 178 0 21 0 199
64 0 15 0 79 Director of Resources 131 0 15 0 147
3,994 52 574 48 4,668 Housing & Community Services 5,660 182 345 59 6,246
1,038 0 368 125 1,531 Planning 1,182 0 172 52 1,406
n) 6,467 1,235 382 91 8,175 Environment & Leisure 6,662 1,171 191 35 8,060
jab) (44) (1,195) 210 3,119 2,090 Regeneration & Economic 681 2,365 97 272 3,415
'(% Development
0 917 21 174 1,085 2,197 Finance & Procurement 846 (70) 74 678 1,527
o (549) 0 311 138 (100) Revenues & Benefits 1,099 0 151 89 1,340
545 9 0 2 556 Environmental Health 658 9 0 (81) 587
1,211 131 0 (375) 967 Information Technology 1,318 27 0 (484) 861
171 0 0 0 171 Internal Audit 135 0 0 0 135
372 0 5 22 399 Human Resources 404 0 3 22 429
437 0 262 (98) 601 Legal 430 0 127 (41) 516
2,736 0 0 (2,772) (36) Corporate Items 660 0 0 (676) (17
20,245 257 2,696 1,462 24,660 Cost of Services 21,983 3,688 1,323 (43) 26,951
(20,349) Financed by Council Tax, Business (22,012)
Rates & Grants
(104) (Surplus) in Year (29)
General Fund Balance:
(4,484) As at 1 April (3,074)
(104) Deficit/(surplus) in Year (29)
1,515 Approved Rollovers 0
(3,074) As at 31 March (3,103)

30




Explanatory Note to the Accounts: Expenditure and Funding Analysis —
Change in Spend Per Department from Reported Basis to Accounting Basis

The left hand column for each year shows the final spend for the year as reported to Policy and Resources Committee. The middle columns
show changes that have to be made in order to report the Council’s expenditure on an accounting basis, which is shown in the column on the
right, which then appears in the next statement — the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as the Cost of Services.

Column Explanations
Capital — includes the accounting cost of depreciation of assets or the change in valuation of assets as these are not charged to the taxpayer;

Pension — shows the cost of pensions based on the accounting standard IAS 19 rather than the actual payments made to the Kent Pension
Fund;

Other — reporting differences between outturn and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement, plus taking out Corporate Items
which are not in Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Cost of Services, e.g. movement to/from reserves.

The table below reconciles the Cost of Services to the Deficit on the Provision of Services on the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement:

-
g 2021/22 2022/23
@ Netexp Adjustments for: Net exp Net exp Adjustments for: Net exp
Ooharged to  Capital Pensions  Other in the chargedto  Capital Pensions Other in the
Hhe General CIES the General CIES
Fund Fund
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
20,245 257 2,696 1,462 24,660 Cost of Services 21,983 3,687 1,323 (42) 26,951
(31,508) (1,434 1,302 6,109 (25,531) Other (Income) & Expenditure (69,330) (317) 1,032 48,101 (20,514)
(11,263) 1,277 3,998 7,571 (871) (Surplus)/Deficit on the (47,347) 3,370 2,355 48,059 6,437
Provision of Services
11,159 1,177 (3,998) (7,571) 767 Adjustments from Accounting 47,318 (3,370) (2,355) (48,059) (6,466)
Basis
(104) 0 0 0 (104) (Surplus) in Year (29) 0 0 0 (29)

31




Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement —
Why the Council’s Resources Changed

2021/22 2022/23
Gross Gross Net Exp £ Gross Gross NetExp
Exp  Income < Exp Income
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
276 0 276 Chief Executive 257 0 257
Policy, Governance, Transformation &
2,601 41 2,560 Customer Services 1,846 (3) 1,843
240 286 526 Director of Regeneration 199 0 199
79 0 79 Director of Resources 147 0 147
13,864 (9,196) 4,668 Housing & Community Services 13,404 (7,158) 6,246
3,388  (1,857) 1,531 Planning 3,252  (1,846) 1,406
13,102  (4,927) 8,175 Environment & Leisure 13,923  (5,863) 8,060
5,213 (3,123) 2,090 Regeneration & Economic Development 4,859 (1,444) 3,415
2,216 19 2,197 Finance & Procurement 1,528 (0) 1,527
34,895 (34,995) (100) Revenues & Benefits 34,677 (33,337) 1,340
604 (48) 556 Environmental Health 625 (39) 587
967 0 967 Information Technology 865 4) 861
171 0 171 Internal Audit 135 0 135
404 (5) 399 Human Resources 437 (8) 429
1,884  (1,283) 601 Legal 1,793  (1,278) 516
0 (36) (36) Corporate ltems 0 (17) (17)
79,904 (55,244) 24,660 Sub Total Cost of Services 77,946 (50,996) 26,951
Other Operating Expenditure
876 0 876 Drainage Board levy 906 0 906
1,575 0 1,575 Parish and Town Council precepts 1,661 0 1,661
54 (138) (84) (Gain)/loss on disposal of assets 14 505 (130) 375
2,066 (4,972) (2,906) Financing & Investment 11 4500 (4,044) 456
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
0 (10,441) (10,441) Council Tax 0 (10,868) (10,868)
0 (22,271) (22,271) Business Rates income 0 (21,781) (21,781)
0 (2,632) (2,632) S31 Business Rate Relief Grants 0 (3,448) (3,448)
12,409 0 12,409 Tariff & levy Business Rates 12,912 0 12,912
3,059  (1,934) 1,125 Business Rates Kent Pool 4,485 (2,582) 1,903
171 0 171 Tax Income Guarantee (S31) 0 0 0
0 (116) (116) Revenue Support Grant 0 (120) (120)
0 (1,659) (1,659) Coronavirus LA Support Grants 0 0 0
0 (1,028) (1,028) New Homes Bonus 0 (1,407) (1,407)
0 (550) (550) Other grants and contributions 0 (1,103) (1,103)

100,114 (100,985) (871) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 102,916 (96,479) 6,437
Net surplus on revaluation of non-current

(3,882) assets 18 (4,465)
Re-measurement of net defined pension

(6,604) liability 9 (49,554)

94 Receipts from long-term debtors 19 235

(11,263) Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (47,347)

This shows the cost of providing services on an accounting basis resulting in net income of
£47.347 million, which increases the value of the Council’s assets. The cost of providing
services funded from taxation is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Pages82




Movement in Reserves Statement — The Change in the Council’s Resources

g abed

General Revenue Total Capital Capital Total Unusable  Total
Fund Earmarked General Receipts Grants Usable Reserves Council
Balance Reserves Fund Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2022/23
Balance at 31 March 2022 (3,074) (23,741) (26,814) (2,843) (511) (30,169) 19,641 (10,528)
Total Comprehensive Expenditure & 6,437 0 6,437 0 0 6,437 (53,784) (47,347)
(Income) 2022/23
Adjustments between accounting 2,145 0 2,145 (103) (202) 1,840 (1,840) 0
basis and fund basis (note 46)
Transfers (to)/from earmarked (8,611) 8,611 0 0 0 0 0 0
reserves (note 17)
(Increase)/decrease in year (29) 8,611 8,582 (103) (202) 8,276 (55,624) (47,347)
Balance at 31 March 2023 (3,103) (15,130) (18,233) (2,946) (713) (21,892) (35,983) (57,875)
2021/22
Balance at 31 March 2021 (4,484) (25,009) (29,494) (2,884) (458) (32,836) 33,571 735
Total Comprehensive Expenditure & (872) 0 (872) 0 0 (872) (10,392) (11,264)
(Income) 2021/22
Adjustments between accounting 3,551 0 3,551 41 (53) 3,539 (3,539) 0)
basis and fund basis (note 46)
Transfers (to)/from earmarked (1,268) 1,269 0 0 0 0 0 0
reserves (note 17)
(Increase)/decrease in year 1,411 1,269 2,679 41 (53) 2,667 (13,931) (11,264)
Balance at 31 March 2022 (3,074) (23,741) (26,814) (2,843) (511) (30,169) 19,641 (10,528)

33

The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) shows the movements in the year for the Council’s usable reserves, (those that can be used for
future funding of services), and unusable reserves (there to deal with accounting entries only). It begins by showing the effect of the previous
statement — the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, and then reverses out accounting entries to show the balance on each of
the reserves at the end of the financial year. In summary, there was a reduction in the Council’s usable reserves of £8.278 million resulting in a
balance of £21.892 million. However, this balance includes £1.3 million on reserves which are already committed to fund the Council’s share of
the deficit of the Collection Fund.



Balance Sheet — The Council’s Resources

31 March 2022

£'000

100
2,190
4,030

60
3,428
2,806

12,614

7,600
19,689
15,602

42,892

(39,548)
(10,000)
(66)
(1,412)
(2,484)

(53,510)

(60)
(62,604)
(12,662)

(137)

(1,930)

(77,393)

(27,899)
(6)
(18,7609)
3,810
330
62,604

(429)

(30,169)

£'000
85,925

98,539

141,431

87,921

10,528

19,641

(10,528)

Total Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets Held for Sale

Heritage Assets

Investment Properties

Intangible Assets

Long-Term Investments

Long-Term Debtors

Total Long-Term Assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Short-Term Investments

Short-Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Short-Term Creditors

Short-Term Loans

S106 Deferred Revenue Receipts
Revenue Grant Receipts in Advance
Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Total Assets less Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Creditors

Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 9(f)

Capital Grants and Contributions
S106 Deferred Revenue Receipts
Provisions

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Net Assets

Financing:

Unusable Reserves

Revaluation Reserve

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absences Account
Pensions Reserve

Pooled Fund Adjustment Account
Total Unusable Reserves

Total Usable Reserves

Total Reserves

8
2 £'000
24
29 100
27 2,330
28 4,173
41
42 2,863
39 2,007
1
42 0
40 19,889
41 5,166
34 (24,941)
42 (10,000)
35 (46)
12 (1,971)
37 (3,162)
33 (60)
(13,924)
36 (12,753)
35 (90)
37 (1,698)
18 (31,944)
(6)
19 (18,173)
20 (190)
22 270
23 13,924
21 137
MIRS

31 March 2023

£'000
89,953

11,513

101,466

25,055

126,521

(40,121)

86,401

(28,526)

57,875

(35,983)

(21,892)

(57,875)

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and

liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the Council.

Page+84




Balance Sheet — The Council’s Resources

There was a significant increase in the value of the Council’s net assets in 2022/23 which
was mainly due to the decrease in the pension liability.

The usable reserves are detailed on the Movement in Reserves Statement and can be used
to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation.

The movement in cash that has resulted in the Cash and Cash Equivalents balance of
£5.166m shown above is detailed in the Cash Flow Statement.

As the Responsible Financial Officer for Swale Borough Council, | hereby certify that these

accounts give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position and financial
performance in advance of approval.

Lisa Fillery CPFA Date: 31 May 2023

Director of Resources

Page 85



Cash Flow Statement — Movement in Council’s Resources in Cash

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 § £'000
871 Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services (6,437)
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements
1,457 Depreciation 1,518
(1,652) Impairments & downward valuations 1,892
(431) Investment property valuation movements & upward revaluations (143)
13,037 Movement in creditors (17,220)
(654) Movement in debtors (1,689)
32 Movement in debt impairment 10
(901) Movement in provisions 1,011
2,562 Movement in pension liability 874
76 Carrying amount of assets held for sale, sold or derecognised 506
26 Other movements 24
13,552 (13,217)
(5,033) Adjustment for items that are investing or financing activities (3,785)
9,390 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating Activities (23,439)
Investing Activities
(1,532) Purchase of property, plant & equipment, investment property & (3,659)
intangible assets
(148,375) Purchase of short-term investments (146,434)
(158) Other payments for investing activities (745)
51 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment, investment 0
property & intangible assets
140,775 Proceeds from short-term investments 154,034
3,504 Other receipts from investing activities 4,219
(5,735) Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing Activities 7,415
Financing Activities
5,000 Movement on short and long-term borrowing 10,000
(739) Council Tax and Business Rates adjustments 5,588
(10,000) Repayment of short-term borrowing (10,000)
(5,739) Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing Activities 5,588
(2,084) Netincrease/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,436)
17,686 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 41 15,602
15,602 Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 41 5,166
(2,084) (10,436)

Pages86

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the
reporting period and how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The figures for
2021/22 have been restated to account for the full value of short term investments that were
made and redeemed within the year.

The cash flow for operating activities includes £705,000 for interest received (£113,000 in
2021/22) and £90,000 for interest paid (£49,000 in 2021/22) due to increasing interest rates
combined with a low level of loans.



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

1. Accounting Policies — General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2023. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 as amended by
the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022, which those regulations require to
be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise of the Code, supported by IFRS and other guidance. The appropriate note details
the critical judgements and estimations about the future made when applying the Accounting
Policies.

(a) Accounting Convention

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts for the basis of
measurement is principally historic cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments.

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis reflecting the economic and statutory
environment in which local authorities operate. These provisions confirm that as authorities
cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription it is only appropriate for their
financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis. The going concern assumption
under the Code is therefore drawn up to assume that a local authority’s services will continue
to operate for the foreseeable future.

The accounting concepts are supported by the fundamental qualitative characteristics of
relevance, faithful representation and materiality and four enhancing qualitative characteristics
of comparability, verifiability, timeliness and understandability. Where a particular accounting
treatment is prescribed by legislation, then the treatment prevails even if it conflicts with one
or other of the above accounting concepts. In the unlikely event of this arising, a note to that
effect will be included in the accounts. The Code only requires local authority financial
statements to disclose information which is material.

(b) Accruals and Revenue Recognition

In accordance with IFRS 15, activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply
when cash payments are made or received and relates to activity on all of the Council’s
functions including non-exchange transactions e.g. Council Tax and Business Rates. In
particular:

e the Council recognises income when or as control over the goods or services is
transferred to the customer or service recipient and the income reflects the
consideration expected for those goods or services;

¢ revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Council;

e supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed,;

e expenses in relation to services received, including those from employees, are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments
are made;

Page 87



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

e revenue relating to such things as council tax, business rates, etc. are measured at
the full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual,
non-exchange transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and
payment dates;

e interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract;

e accruals are recognised where the value exceeds £1,000;

e where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to Cost of Services for the income that might not be
collected;

e exceptions are utility bills, insurance premiums and income from car parking, which
are, in the main, charged or credited to the year in which billed, rather than be
apportioned between years as the effect of adjusting for opening and closing balances
would not be material to the total of transactions for the year. This policy also covers
larger payments credited to the year in which they were billed and not apportioned
between years; and,

e the annual review of the impairment allowance for non-payment of debt will take into
account the prevailing economic climate.

2. Accounting Policies
(a) Capital Receipts

When an asset is disposed of or de-commissioned, the carrying amount and the receipt from
the sale are charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. The receipt is
required to be credited to the usable capital receipts reserve and can only be used to finance
capital expenditure or set aside to reduce the Council’'s borrowing requirement.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents are highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and are shown
on the Balance Sheet at their nominal value. The Council has defined cash equivalents as
investments that do not require notice for withdrawal.

Pages88



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(c) Employee Benefits — Costs

Termination benefits are amounts payable due to a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer's employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or,
where applicable, to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement at the earlier of
when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council
recognises costs for a restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of
pensions, statutory provisions require that the General Fund is charged with the amount
payable by the Council to the Kent Pension Fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the Kent Pension Fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end.

(d) Employee Benefits — Post-Employment Benefits

The liabilities of the Kent Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, and projections of
projected earnings for current employees. The value of the Kent Pension Fund liabilities has
been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 4.8%. The
discount rate is calculated using the annualised Merrill Lynch AA-rated corporate bond curve,
chosen to meet the requirements of IAS 19 and with consideration of the estimated duration
of employer’s liabilities.

The assets of the Kent Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value.

The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve measures the beneficial impact to
the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash
flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

The Fund’s Actuary determines employers’ contributions to the Pension Fund on a triennial
basis. The last actuarial valuation took place on 31 March 2022 and the change in
contribution rates as a result of that valuation take effect from 1 April 2023.

(e) Estimation Techniques

Estimation techniques are the methods adopted by the Council to arrive at estimated
monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement bases selected for assets, liabilities,
gains, losses and changes in reserves. Details of where these have been used are contained
in the relevant note to the Accounts. Where a change in an estimation technique is material,
an explanation is also provided of the change and its effect on the results for the current
period.

(f) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. However, “other debtors” are an
exception as they are not recognised when the Council becomes committed to supply the

Page 89



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

goods or service but when the ordered goods or services have been delivered or rendered.
Similarly, “other creditors” are recognised when the ordered goods or services have been
received.

Financial assets are classified as one of:

e fair value through profit and loss — this category includes:

o Money Market Funds (MMFs) and are initially measured and carried in the Balance
Sheet at fair value; and

o Investment in Church, Charities and Local Authorities (CCLA) Property Fund
carried at fair value at 31 March 2023.

e amortised cost — this category includes debtors and are initially measured at fair value
and carried in the Balance Sheet at their amortised cost.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the market price.
Financial liabilities are measured in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. No impairment is
calculated for assets which are classified as fair value through profit and loss as the risk is
reflected in the movement in their fair value.

The reconciliation of amounts based on accounting regulations charged to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement to the net charge required by statute
against the General Fund balance, is accounted for by a transfer to or from the Pooled Fund
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

(g) Government Grants and Other External Contributions

Government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the
Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

e the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.

Receipts defined as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
included on the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, grants specific to
a service will be credited against that service expenditure line. General grants, e.g. Revenue
Support Grant and the Council’s share of business rates from the Collection Fund are credited
and disclosed separately in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement under
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income. Where capital grants are credited to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund
balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to
finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Pageo90



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(h) Heritage Assets

A Heritage Asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for
future generations because of its historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities and is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge
and culture. Heritage assets are carried at valuation (the majority are based on insurance
valuations) rather than fair value, reflecting the fact that exchanges of heritage assets are
uncommon.

() Intangible Assets

These are non-current assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and are
controlled through custody or legal rights. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost and
is not subject to revaluation. It is, however, subject to amortisation over its ‘useful’ life, which
for computer software has been assessed as up to a maximum of seven years.

() Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used primarily to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. They are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between parties at arm’s length (i.e. market
value, the amount that would be paid for the asset in its highest and best use). Properties are
not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end and
any gains or losses on revaluation or disposal are taken to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement and are reversed out of the General Fund balance via the Movement
in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

(k) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease
covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to
use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee
i) Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Lease payments are apportioned between:

» acharge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied
to write down the lease liability, and

« afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Page 91



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the
asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the lease period). The Council is not
required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the
two.

i) Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment.

The Council as Lessor
i) Finance Leases

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement
of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (where Property, Plant
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain
or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

32 Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

« a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and

« finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received this is posted out of the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals
in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals
are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the
Capital Receipts Reserve. The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against the
Council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Page292



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

i) Operating leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental Income is credited to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Where the impact would be material, credits are made on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is
a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging the lease term are charged as an expense over the lease term,
on the same basis as the rental income.

() Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities are those due beyond the next 12 months. The current portion of any
long-term liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date are
included within current liabilities.

(m) Material Iltems of Income and Expense

Material items of income and expense are required by the Code to be shown separately within
the Statement of Accounts. The Council has decided that for this purpose an item is judged to
be financially material if it is in excess of £1.3m.

(n) Non-Current Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as PPE. Assets which are not being
used to deliver services, but which do not meet the criteria to be classified as either
Investment Assets or Assets Held for Sale, are recorded as Surplus Assets.

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of PPE is capitalised on an accruals
basis. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future
economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred.

The Council operates a de-minimus level of £10,000 for non-current assets. Any expenditure
below this level is charged to revenue in the year of acquisition.

Each of the PPE asset classifications are revalued periodically in stages on the basis
recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles
and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), as
follows:

« infrastructure, assets under construction and community assets are valued at historic
cost, net of depreciation (where applicable), and

« other land and buildings, vehicles, plant, furniture, equipment and surplus assets are
valued at current value.

For assets that are carried in the Balance Sheet at current value, the measurements reflect
the economic environment prevailing for the service or function the asset is supporting at the
reporting date. The current value measurement bases include:

« Depreciated Replacement Cost, for assets where there is no market and/or the asset
is specialised;

Page 93



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

o Existing Use Value defined in accordance with RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards for assets providing service potential to the Council where an active market
exists; and

« [Fair Value, for surplus assets that are not being used to deliver services, but which do
not meet the criteria to be classified as either Investment Assets or Assets Held for
Sale.

The value of any surplus property is measured at its fair value with the purpose being to
return the highest possible valuation, the estimated use of the property being taken as that
which best supports this highest value. Surplus property valuations are based on using
pricing information derived from an accessible market with the highest volume and level of
activity for property transactions available. The valuer will use one or several measurements
and/or factors to determine the value of the property, some of which may be more significant
in assessing the valuation than others. Many of these inputs are observable, e.g. they can be
seen, measured or found from existing data and records. Other inputs however may not be
observable, e.g. an input based solely on the judgement of the valuer or where data is not
available and assumptions are made. The inputs used in valuations are classified into
separate hierarchies, which are a guide in assessing the risk of the valuation being more
based on subjective interpretation than fact. For building and land valuations, observable
inputs are classed as Level 2 and unobservable inputs are classed as Level 3.

The Council’s approach to revaluation is to have a rolling programme of revaluations over five
years. Assets that have a significant value are revalued annually, even if they are not
scheduled to be so according to the five-year programme.

The Council’s principal assets are revalued regularly and any gains arising from revaluations
are reflected in the Revaluation Reserve or, where previous losses have occurred, are
credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement to the limit of the previous
loss. A loss on valuation is charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the limit of that fund and
thereafter is charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. The
programme of revaluations is continuing on this cyclical basis although material changes to
asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim periods, as they occur. Where assets are
valued at depreciated replacement cost, this has only been undertaken where there is no
active market for that asset.

The Council applies the principles of component accounting where an asset has a gross book
value in excess of £1m and a residual life of over 25 years.

Impairment — assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. Where impairment losses are identified, they are charged against
the Revaluation Reserve up to the amount attributable to each specific asset held in that
reserve. Any excess of this amount is then chargeable to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement. Any charges to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
are reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Depreciation — depreciation is provided for on all PPE with a finite useful life (which can be
determined at the time of acquisition or revaluation) according to the following policy:

e newly acquired assets are not depreciated in the year of acquisition where this does
not have a material effect upon the accounts, and

o depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method.

The standard useful lives for each category of asset are as follows:

Page+94



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Asset

Depreciation Methodology

Operational buildings

Usually 50, although this can vary according to the
individual asset

Operational land

30 to 50 years (usually relating to car parks)

Land

Depreciation is not normally provided for freehold land

Non-operational buildings

40 to 60 years depending on the individual asset

Community assets

According to whether it is land, building or equipment
as above

Infrastructure assets

20 to 50 years

IT equipment 3 to 7 years depending on the nature of the asset
Non-IT furniture and 10 to 20 years

equipment

Vehicles Up to 10 years depending on the type of vehicle

Provision for depreciation is made by allocating the cost (or revalued amount) less estimated
residual value of the assets, as fairly as possible over their useful lives.

Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful lives, the components
are depreciated separately. If there is a change in the depreciation charge because of an
impairment which is material, full year depreciation is charged in the year of impairment.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historic cost. The value of the depreciated revaluation gain is
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals — when an asset is disposed of, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as part of the gain
or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Revaluation gains in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

When infrastructure assets are replaced, the underlying assumption will be that the part
replaced was worn out and fully depreciated. As such, there will be no accounting
transactions for the derecognition of the replaced or renewed part of the infrastructure asset.
The exception to this will be where the asset renewed or replaced is distinctly recognisable
and valued, or where an infrastructure asset is fully removed from use (not replaced or
renewed).

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure Statement. The costs of disposal up to 4% of the capital receipts are met from
the sale proceeds.

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements. In the
public sector, as entities tend to be primarily ‘spending’ to provide public services rather than
profit making or asset holding, it is common practice to use gross revenue expenditure as the
appropriate financial reporting metric to apply materiality. However, for the purposes of
disclosure requirements and adherence to relevant accounting principles and statutory
requirements for non-current assets it is more appropriate to apply a materiality level of 2% of
net non-current asset value which for 2022/23 is £1.8 million (2021/22 £1.7m).

Page 95



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(0) Non-Current Assets — Charges to Revenue

Service revenue accounts and trading accounts are charged with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

e depreciation attributable to the non-current assets used by the relevant service;

e revaluation and impairment losses, where they are in excess of the sum available in
the Revaluation Reserve; and,

e amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

These charges are reversed out of the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement via
the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement, the Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP) (normally equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council
in accordance with statutory guidance) and approved each year by Council.

(p) Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation
and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. When payments
are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.

(q) Reserves

Expenditure is not charged directly to a reserve, but to the service revenue account within the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. This is then offset by a reserve
appropriation within the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Pages96



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

() Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but which does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. If the Council has decided to finance this
expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, then the cost is reversed out of
the General Fund so there is no impact on the level of Council Tax, by a transfer in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

(s) Shared Services

The Council maintains ‘shared service’ operations for a number of services. The shared
service arrangements have been assessed against the definitions within the Code and the
Council has decided that the Mid Kent Services (MKS) Board is a non-decision making body
(decisions to enter into a shared service and the level of involvement and consequent cost lie
with each council via its own decision making mechanism) and there is then a collaboration
agreement in place for each shared service. Accordingly, all expenditure and income of these
services is included within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

(t) Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT is accounted for separately and is included in income and expenditure accounts to the
extent that it is not recoverable. The Council’s partial exemption status is reviewed on an
annual basis.

(u) Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the
supply or service where the total cost needs to be reflected at service level. In those cases
the total absorption costing principal is used — the full cost of overheads and support services
are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received.

(v) Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates

The Council is a billing authority and, as such, is required to bill local residents and
businesses for council tax and national non-domestic (business) rates. The Council collects
council tax on behalf of the major precepting authorities - Kent County Council, Kent Police &
Crime Commissioner, and Kent Fire and Rescue Service, and collects business rates on
behalf of the Government, Kent County Council and Kent Fire and Rescue Service. The
Council therefore acts as agent on behalf of these major preceptors. These accounts only
show the amount owed to/from taxpayers in respect of council tax demanded by this Council.
Amounts owing to/from taxpayers for council tax for major precepting authorities are shown as
net debtors or creditors on the balance sheet. Billing authorities are required by statute to
maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of
amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the
Collection Fund, billing authorities and major preceptors share proportionately the risks and
rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than
predicted. The amounts shown as council tax/business rates in the Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
represent the amounts due to this Council for the year. However, regulations determine the
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund.
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the CIES and the amount required
by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Page 97



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(w) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment. Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper
accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or
financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if
the new policy had always been applied. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are
corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the
prior period.

3. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
Accounting standards that have been issued but not yet adopted are:

e |FRS 16 Leases, which has been deferred until 2024/25;

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018—-2020. The annual IFRS improvement
programme notes four changed standards:

o IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) — amendment relates to foreign operations of
acquired subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS;

o |AS 37 (Onerous contracts) — clarifies the intention of the standard;

o IFRS 16 (Leases) — amendment removes a misleading example that is not
referenced in the Code material; and,

o |AS 41 (Agriculture) — one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected to
apply to local authorities in limited circumstances.

e Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS
16.

None of the above are expected to have a material effect on the Council’s finances in
2023/24.

4. Accounting Estimates

In order to prepare the accounts, the Council makes accounting estimates for the value of
pensions, property, plant and equipment, financial instruments, and the impairment allowance
for debtors. These are supported by professional advice from Barnett Waddingham
(actuaries on pensions), Arlingclose (treasury advisors on financial instruments), and Wilks,
Head & Eve (valuers for property, plant and equipment). Their professional advice is
reviewed and challenged by Council officers, including comments made by Grant Thornton,
the external auditors, in previous audits. For these items, the accounts include a forecast of
the financial impact of a change (typically 1%) in the accounting estimate made.

Pages98



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The effects on the estimation uncertainty in the Statement of Accounts are as follows:
(&) Pension Scheme

Swale Council did not consider it appropriate to make an allowance for their actual member
mortality experience over the accounting year as this would require a full valuation of updated
membership data and would incur additional fees. Therefore, the accounts are based on a
roll forward approach in calculating the liabilities, rather than carry out a full valuation of
member data. This means that mortality experience is estimated through the benefits paid
out to members. The difference between this estimate and the employer’s actual mortality
experience will then be incorporated once the next actuarial valuation of the fund is complete.

As a result of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, there has been volatility in the market for various
asset classes globally. Therefore, the accounts reflect the actual return earned by the fund
assets over the accounting period. Fundamentally, this approach will see assets as at 31
March 2023 based on actual investment return earned by the Fund without any estimation
being required. Although some of these data items have been estimated, they are not likely
to have a material effect on the accounts.

From an accounting perspective, the current methodology in deriving assumptions continues
to be appropriate with the current uncertainties in the market. This approach is in line with the
current FRS102/IAS19 accounting standard.

(b) Financial Instruments

The fair values used in the preparation of the Council accounts have not been affected by any
material uncertainty.

(c) Impairment Allowance for Non-Payment of Debt

It is prudent to establish a provision (impairment allowance) for non-payment of debt. The
aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic coupled with the cost of living crisis could potentially
have an adverse impact on collectability of debt and will be the subject of ongoing review.
Therefore, due to the uncertainty about collecting any outstanding monies from taxpayers, a
prudent approach has been taken when setting the rates for bad debt provisions, which are
reflected in these financial statements. The impact of this uncertainty is noted in Note 40.

(d) Non-Current Assets

To reduce estimation uncertainty, the valuation date for investment and high value assets of
the Council were as at 31 March 2023.

In preparing the accounts the Council was not aware of any specific impact to the value of the
assets within its portfolio because of the ongoing conflict in Ukraine.

The economic climate has created uncertainty about the ability to maintain assets to the usual
level. More details of the impact of this uncertainty can be found in Note 24.

5. Events after the Reporting Period

The draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Resources on 31
May 2023. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or
notes. Where events taking place before this date have provided information about
conditions existing at 31 March 2023, the figures in the financial statements and notes have
been adjusted if material to reflect the impact of this information.

Page 99



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

6. Authorisation of Accounts for Issue

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by Lisa Fillery, the Director of
Resources, on 31 May 2023.

Pay and Pensions

7. Officers’ Remuneration and Termination Benefits

The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions,
was £50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000, was:

2021/22 2022/23
Number of Employees Remuneration Band Number of Employees
£50,000 - £54,999 12
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£95,000 - £99,999
£105,000 - £109,999
£125,000 - £129,999
£130,000 - £134,999
Total

N

OFRPPFPOWONOWOU 0

RPORNMRRRERREO®

w
'_\
w
~

This has been applied consistently to both years. Remuneration comprises:

« all sums paid to or receivable by an employee including non-taxable termination
payments, redundancy pay and pay in lieu of notice;
o the monetary value of any other benefits.

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and
other redundancies are set out in the table below:

2021/22 2022/23
%) 8 Q,(” w 9 %) B Q")) w O
588 5058 28 588 5858 58
§25 SSEL §°2 §95 95598 88
58 £§585 ST w Band 538 £6585 Sgw
SR8 5 &I S F SR8 58T S F
$§s T 9 B¢ §5§5 2 87 &8¢
O g i @] & ~ o
0 3 9,444 £0 - £20,000 6 0 79,043
0 0 0 £20,001 - £40,000 1 1 48,214
1 0 52,228 £40,001 - £60,000 0 1 40,953
0 0 0 £60,001 - £80,000 0 1 75,158
1 3 61,672 Total paid to employees 7 3 243,368

Page 500



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

The table below reports the details of officers with statutory responsibilities and those reporting
direct to the Chief Executive.

2021/22 2022/23
g8 .S g8 .S
tF 53 8 £F 53 8
s g5 < 55 £F 8
g% 45 g %8
%] o @] %] o O
£'000 £000 £'000 § £'000 £000 £'000
125 23 148 Chief Executive 132 25 157
48 9 57 Director of Resources 1 99 18 117
Director of Regeneration &
105 19 124 Neighbourhoods 107 20 127
Head of Policy, Governance
79 15 94 & Customer Services 87 16 103
38 7 45 Head of Legal Partnership 2 84 15 99
395 73 468 Total 509 94 603

Point 1. Post holder was appointed October 2021.

Point 2: Post holder was internally promoted to temporarily act up to the role of Head of
Legal Services in October 2021. Includes market supplement and mileage

allowance.

Pension contributions in 2021/22 have been restated to remove the allocation of secondary
rate payments.

8. Members’ Allowances

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
259 Basic allowance 306
180 Special responsibility allowance 90

11 Members' travel, subsistence & IT allowance 5

450 Total 401

The Members’ Allowances Scheme can be inspected on the Council website
http://www.swale.gov.uk/members-allowances/.

9. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
a) Nature of Benefits of Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Council is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which is a
national scheme that is administered locally on its behalf by KCC — all employees have
the right to join the scheme. This is a funded defined benefit career average salary
scheme, so that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a
level intended to balance the pensions’ liabilities with investment assets. The fund
provides index linked pensions and other retirement benefits based upon employees’ pay
and length of service and these benefits are determined independently from investments

Page 101


http://www.swale.gov.uk/members-allowances/

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

b)

d)

of the scheme. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire,
the Council has a commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the
time that employees earn their future entittement. Employee contribution rates are set by
Government and range from 5.5% to 12.5%. The fund actuary, Barnett Waddingham,
sets the employer contribution rate, and for 2022/23 the rate was 18.5%, plus an annual
fixed sum.

Regulatory Framework of Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Kent Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the LGPS and the
governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Superannuation Committee of KCC.
This committee is responsible for setting investment strategy, appointing professional
fund managers, carrying out regular reviews, monitoring of investments, monitoring the
administration of the Pension Fund and determining Pension Fund policy with regard to
employer admission arrangements. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions
Fund Regulations.

Risks of Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals
from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity
investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as described
in the accounting policies note.

Other Factors Affecting Pension Payments

The Council has arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits
upon early retirement — this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which
liabilities are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment
assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet
actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

Revenue Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

The costs of retirement benefits are recognised in the Cost of Services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge that is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the accounting based cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of
the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement and the
General Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement:

Page 5202



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2021/22 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 2022/23
£'000 £'000
Cost of services comprising:

4,238 Current service cost 2,833

56 Administration expenses 59

1,302 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 1,032
Total post-employment benefits charged to the provision of

5,596 services 3,924

Post-employment benefits charged to Other Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure:

92) Return on plan assets in excess of interest 2,093

0 Other actuarial gains/(losses) on assets (138)

0 Change in demographic assumptions (4,006)

375 Experience loss on defined benefit obligation 9,408

(6,887) Change in financial assumptions (56,911)
Total remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive

(6,604) Income & Expenditure (49,554)

Total post-employment benefits credited to the

(1,008) Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (45,630)

2021/22 Movement in Reserves Statement 2022/23

£'000 £'000

(2,562) Reduction of charges made to the deficit on the Provision of Services (874)

for post-employment benefits to equal actual payments in accordance
with the Code (see Note 46)

3,034 Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 3,050

92 Actual return on scheme assets less interest (2,093)

f) Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amounts included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefits plans are as follows:

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
155,977 Present value of the defined benefit obligation 108,098
(95,815) Fair value of plan assets (96,090)
60,162 12,008
2,442 Present value of unfunded obligation 1,916
62,604 Net liability in the balance sheet 13,924

g) Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets and Liabilities
(Defined Benefit Obligation)

The Pensions Reserve figure in the Balance Sheet consists of the total assets plus
liabilities detailed below:

Page 103



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2021/22 Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities 2022/23
£'000 £'000
(161,223) Opening balance as at 1 April - defined benefit obligation (158,419)
(4,238) Current service cost (2,792)
0 Past service cost (41)
(3,188) Interest cost (4,366)
(609) Contributions by scheme participants (601)
6,887 Changes in financial assumptions 56,911
(375) Experience loss on defined benefit obligation (9,408)
0 Changes in demographic assumptions 4,006
4,327 Benefits paid including unfunded pension payments 4,696
(158,419) Closing balance as at 31 March - defined benefit obligation (110,014)

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
94,577 Opening balance as at 1 April - fair value of scheme assets 95,815
1,886 Interest on assets 3,334
92 Return on assets less interest (2,093)
(56) Administration expenses (59)
3,034 Employer contributions 3,050
609 Contributions by scheme participants 601
0 Other actuarial gains/(losses) 138
(4,327) Benefits paid including unfunded pension payments (4,696)
95,815 Closing balance as at 31 March - fair value of scheme assets 96,090

h) Pension Fund Assets

The Pension Fund’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total

assets held:
31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£000 % £000 %
61,712 64  Equity investments 61,381 64
585 1 Gilts 527 1
13,237 14 Bonds 12,633 13
11,261 12  Property 9,601 10
1,927 2 Cash 1,625 2
7,093 7 Absolute return fund 7,046 7
0 0 Infrastructure 3,277 3
95,815 100 Total 96,090 100

i) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Estimates of the liability are based on the rolled forward value of the employer’s liabilities
calculated for latest full funding valuation, allowing for the different assumptions required
under IAS 19. These values were updated this year to be based on the triennial valuation
carried out at 31 March 2022.

Pagest04



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
Mortality assumptions
Longevity at 65 if retiring today:
21.6 years Men 21.1 years
23.7 years Women 23.5 years
Longevity at 65 if retiring in 20 years:
23.0 years Men 22.3 years
25.1 years Women 25.0 years
3.45% Rate of inflation (Retail Price Index (RPI) increases) 3.20% to 3.40%
3.15% Rate of inflation (Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases)  2.85% to 2.95%
4.20% Rate of increase in salaries 3.95%
3.20% Rate of increase in pensions 2.95%
2.60% Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 4.80%

The return on the Fund (on a bid value to bid value basis) for the year to 31 March 2023 is
estimated to be 1.30% (2.10% for the year 31 March 2022).

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions set out in
the table above. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the
other assumptions remain constant.

Uncertainty Sensitivity Analysis
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Adjustment to discount rate +0.5% +1% 0.0% 1%  -0.5%
Present value of total obligation 102,281 95,418 110,014 128,710 118,764
Projected service cost 1369 1,154 1622 2,273 1,919
Adjustment to long-term salary increase +0.5% +1% 0.0% 1%  -0.5%
Present value of total obligation 110,804 111,624 110,014 108,521 109,253
Projected service cost 1,627 1,632 1,622 1,611 1,616
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.5% +1% 0.0% 1% -0.5%
Present value of total obligation 118,096 127,274 110,014 96,551 102,876
Projected service cost 1,918 2,280 1,622 1,149 1,372
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +1 Year 0.0% -1 Year
Present value of total obligation 114,458 110,014 105,764
Projected service cost 1,680 1,622 1,565

J) Funding and Investment Strategy

KCC as administering authority for the Kent Pension Fund maintains a Funding and
Investment Strategy as required by the pensions and (where relevant) investment
regulations. The funding objectives are to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund,
ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due for payment
and enable employer contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible and at a
reasonable cost to taxpayers. The aim of its investment strategy is to minimise the risk of
an overall reduction in the Fund’s value and to maximise the opportunity for gains across
the whole portfolio. The Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce
exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to

Page 105



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is
sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows. The Funding and Investment
Strategy is reviewed annually or more frequently if necessary.

k) Impact of Pension Fund on Council’'s Cash Flows

An objective of the scheme is to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as
possible and funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The Fund is valued once
every three years and the valuation as at 31 March 2022 disclosed a net deficit of £8.5m
on Swale Borough Council’s share of the fund, a reduction of £7m from the 2019
valuation deficit of £15.5m. The last actuarial valuation took place on 31 March 2022 and
the change in contribution rates as a result of that valuation will take effect from 1 April
2023. The primary rate will increase from 18.5% to 20.5%, but the secondary rate will fall
to a fixed annual amount of £850,000 per year for the next 3 years (secondary rate
payments of £1,290,000 were made in 2022/23).

The movement in financial assumptions is due to the change in the discount rate and
inflation forecasts.

The total contributions (not including unfunded) expected to be made to the Kent Pension
Fund by the Council in 2023/24 is £2.73m (£2.879m in 2022/23).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is
16 years for 2022/23 (2021/22 average was 19 years).

[) Accounting for the McCloud and Sargeant Judgements

An allowance was made in the 2020/21 Annual Accounts shown as a past service cost
and therefore no explicit adjustments have been made in the valuation results this year.
The estimated cost of the McCloud judgement has been updated as part of the 2022
valuation update and will reflect the approach adopted at the valuation in estimated the
cost of the remedy. Any difference between this cost and the cost previously incorporated
into the employer’s accounting liabilities are not expected to be material.

Page 5806



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Day to Day Spending — Revenue

10. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2021/22 2022/23

Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure
£'000 £'000
32,676 Benefit payments 31,429
17,371 Employee costs 15,970
15,468 Business rates paid to Government and pool 17,397
23,455 Other service expenses 23,049
7,704 Major contracts 8,531
1,575 Parish precepts 1,661
876 Drainage board levy 906
667 Trading undertakings losses 2,743
47 Investment properties 67
275 Other items 1,163
100,114 Total expenditure 102,916
(32,152) Benefitincome (Note 12) (30,944)
(24,205) Business rates income (24,363)
(2,632) s31 retail relief grant (3,448)
(11,041) Fees, charges and other service income (12,617)
(10,441) Council tax (10,868)
(1,028) New homes bonus (1,407)
(3,658) Trading undertakings gains (2,883)
(116) Revenue support grant (120)
(1,659) Coronavirus LA support grant 0
(12,050) Grantincome credited to cost of services (Note 12) (7,436)
(550) Other grants and contributions (1,203)
(1,453) Other items (1,290)
(100,985) Total income (96,479)
(871) Deficit/(Surplus) on provision of services 6,437

11. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2021/22 2022/23
Net Net
Expenditure o Expenditure

£'000 2 £'000

49 Interest payable & similar charges 90

1,302 Net interest on net defined pension liability 9 1,032

(113) Interest receivable & similar income (705)
(2,992) Gains on trading undertakings (140)
(209) (Income) & expenditure on investment properties 28 (243)

(431) Change in fair value of investment properties 28 (143)

(512) Net (gains)/losses on financial assets through profit & loss 42 565
(2,906) Total 456

Page 107



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

12. Grant Income
a) Grants Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
These are detailed in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.
b) Revenue Grants — Receipts in Advance

The revenue grants receipts in advance at 31 March 2023 were £1,971,000
(£1,412,000 at 31 March 2022).

The reason for the increase is due to a number of grants that have not yet been fully
used as well as receipt of new grants from government for local investment.

c) Capital Grants and Contributions
Please see Note 36 for a breakdown of Capital Grants and Contributions.

d) Grants Credited to Services

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 Grant Area Provider £'000
(32,152) Housing benefit grant DWP (30,944)
(2,856) Coronavirus Additional Restrictions Business Grants BEIS 0
(2,808) Queenborough & Rushenden Klondyke land HCA (1,253)

improvement funded by Housing Infrastructure Fund
(1,599) Housing repair grants - disabled facilities DLUHC (1,753)
(1,069) Homelessness grant DLUHC (876)
0 Household Support Fund KCC (648)
0 Energy Rebate Scheme DLUHC (351)
(716) Coronavirus revenue grants - other Various (36)
(618) Coronavirus S13A Council Tax hardship grant DLUHC 0
(453) Rough sleeper initiative DLUHC (581)
(409) Housing benefit admin subsidy DWP (411)
0 Council Tax Support Scheme Admin Grant KCC (134)
(369) Discretionary housing payment DWP (260)
(326) Coronavirus - Contain outbreak management fund ~ Various (78)
(170) Localising Council Tax support administration DLUHC (169)
subsidy grant

(104) Implementing welfare reform changes DWP (113)
(101) Council Tax & Business Rates grants BEIS (29)
(96) Open spaces & play areas - commuted sums Various (66)
(356) Other grants Various (678)
(44,202) (38,380)

Page 5808



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

13. External Audit Costs

The Council’s auditors are Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
71 Fees payable for external audit service 73

26 Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns 28

97 Total 100

14. Gains and Losses on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

A review of the Council’s infrastructure assets was carried out in 2022/23 resulting in the
derecognition of assets that are no longer owned by the Council, and that therefore should no
longer be included in the balance sheet.

Total assets valued at £505,000 were written out in 2022/23, including £443,000 of highway
related infrastructure assets resulting from the review. A total net loss of £375,000 was
incurred for 2022/23 for all derecognised assets after repayment of Disabled Facilities Grants
of £121,000 (net gain from disposals of £84,000 in 2021/22).

No investment assets were disposed of in 2022/23 or 2021/22. Gains and losses on
investment properties are shown within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in
the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

Council Resources — Reserves

15. Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

This reserve holds the income from the disposal of land and other assets, which can only be
used to fund new capital expenditure or to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance
on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied at year-end.

In 2022/23 the Council did not sell any assets, so no capital receipts were received, other than
through the repayment of grants.

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
(2,884) Balance as at 1 April (2,843)
(52) Capital receipts in year from sale of assets 0
(108) Capital receipts in year from repayment of grants (130)
201 Capital receipts applied during the year - financing long-term assets 27
(2,843) (2,946)

16. Capital Grants Unapplied Account

This reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the
Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but
which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance at 31 March 2023 of
£713,000 is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be
applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place.

Page 109



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

17. Revenue Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund to earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and
the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2021/22 and 2022/23.

The table has been streamlined to aid the reader of the accounts. Balances remain the same, but have been amalgamated into relevant
groups.

OTT obed

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
31 March out in 31 March out in 31 March
2021 2021/22  2021/22 2022 2022/23  2022/23 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Budget Contingency Reserve 0 225 (3,043) (2,818) 1,714 (1,816) (2,920)
Kent Pool Economic Development Business Rates (1,094) 286 (931) (1,739) 1,170 (1,318) (1,887)
North Kent Housing & Commercial Growth Business Rates (1,673) 93 0 (1,580) 246 0 (1,334)
Special Project Fund (1,055) 648 (1,000) (1,407) 742 0 (665)
Business Rates Volatility (2,827) 2,048 (616) (1,395) 537 a47) (1,005)
Improvement & Resilience (1,000) 206 0 (794) 467 0 (328)
Building and Asset Maintenance (563) 0 (118) (681) 20 (80) (741)
Service Reserves (2,908) 1,928 (536) (1,516) 225 0 (1,291)
Waste and Environment (392) 2 (80) (470) 14 0 (456)
ICT Equipment Reserve (379) 161 (198) (416) 27 (105) (494)
Town Centre/High Streets (758) 334 0 (424) 202 0 (222)
Repairs and Renewals (497) 231 (77) (342) 90 (53) (305)
Miscellaneous (3,672) 996 (918) (3,594) 1,926 (408) (2,075)
Total Earmarked (Excl General Fund) (16,817) 7,158 (7,516) (17,176) 7,380 (3,927) (13,722)
Ring Fenced / Accounting / Collection Fund
Collection Fund & Grants In Advance (7,390) 6,371 (4,613) (5,632) 4,368 (60) (1,325)
Accounting Adjustments (803) 39 (169) (933) 851 0 (82)
(25,010) 13568 (12,299) (23,741) 12,598 (3,987) (15,130)
Net transfer (to) / from reserves 1,270 8,611

60



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Budget Contingency
Reserve

Cabinet 16 March 2022 approved the creation of this reserve. The purpose of the
reserve is to support the revenue budget over future years, smoothing the impact of
unexpected events, and providing a level of resilience.

Kent Pool Economic
Development Business
Rates

This fund was established as a result of the Council joining the Kent Business Rates
Pool. Itis to fund economic development as agreed by the Council and KCC. As
agreed by Cabinet on 16/12/2020 the balance on this reserve is to be retained for
potential top ups and for new initiatives or pressures.

North Kent Housing &
Commercial Growth
Business Rates

Under the Kent Business Rates 2018/19 Pilot there was to be an allocation of funds
called the Housing & Commercial Growth Business Rates which was allocated among
‘clusters” of authorities for each cluster to determine the final allocation. SBC is in the
“North Kent” cluster. Cabinet on 16/12/2020 agreed that this fund was to be used to
fund the Local Housing Company, for set up costs and future investment, including
possible investment in Sheppey.

Special Project Fund

This was agreed by Cabinet on 10 July 2019, to deliver tangible projects for the
residents of the borough. The balance on this reserve has been fully committed and is
expected to be utilised by the end of 2023/24.

Business Rates Volatility

To assist the Council in managing the volatility of business rate income as a result of
business rate localisation.

Improvement and
Resilience

The Cabinet meeting on 16 December 2020 agreed the creation of this fund for
improvement and resilience projects across the borough. The balance on this reserve
has been fully committed and is expected to be utilised by the end of 2023/24.

Building and Asset
Maintenance

To meet items of backlog building maintenance as well as urgent or unexpected items.
Each year the reserve is topped up by any underspend on the building maintenance
revenue budget.

Service Reserves

Savings made in a number of services have been transferred to reserve over time.
These reserves are then used to cover future additional costs, shortfalls in government
grants, or required system developments.

Waste & Environment

This is used for work relating to the collection of waste, including service
improvements. It also contains income from Fixed Penalty Notices that can be used to
support environmental initiatives, ensuring this income is used to create a cleaner and
greener environment.

ICT Equipment Reserve | This funds future IT expenditure. Underspends on ICT expenditure are transferred to
this reserve, allowing the cost of replacement equipment to be smoothed.

Town Centres/ High The Cabinet meeting 16 December 2020 agreed funding for Town Centre and High

Street. Street Projects. The balance on this reserve has been fully committed and is expected

to be utilised by the end of 2023/24.

Repairs and Renewals

Regular contributions are made to this fund for a number of services to fund the future
cost of significant items of expenditure.

Miscellaneous

This consists of a number of smaller reserves, some of which have been fully
committed. They have been earmarked for a number of different purposes such as
election costs and car park investment.

Collection Fund and
Grants In Advance

These reserves are fully committed to offset the business rate collection fund deficit
arising from timing differences due to the receipt of Government awarded rate relief
and the collection fund accounting requirements.

Accounting adjustments

These are reserves created by accounting entries but are not available to support
general Council expenditure.

18. Revaluation Reserve

This reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its
property, plant and equipment assets, heritage assets and frozen gains re investment assets
(incurred prior to the assets being classified as investment assets).

Page 111



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are revalued downwards or

impaired and the gains are lost; used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed

through depreciation; or disposed of and the gains are realised.

The gains and losses greater than £100,000 in 2022/23 are shown below.

(Gains) or losses on revaluation 2022/23

£'000
Swallows Leisure Centre, Sittingbourne Gain (1,302)
Sheerness Swimming Pool Gain (351)
Faversham Swimming Pool Gain (269)
Sheerness Leisure Centre Gain (297)
Pavilion at Faversham Recreation Ground Gain (243)
Land at Brielle Way, West Minster Gain (778)
Cinema Building, Sittingbourne Gain (610)
Hotel Building, Sittingbourne Gain (149)
Central Park Stadium, Murston Gain (108)
Central House, Sittingbourne Gain (175)
Master's House, Sheerness Loss 138

Some of the large worth properties are split between their components e.g. roof, structure,
electrics, heating etc. which are all separately valued. The gains and losses shown above are

the net change in value of the whole asset.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date the

reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date were consolidated into the

balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2021/22 2022/23
£°000 £°000
(24,394) Balance as at 1 April (27,899)
(4,814) (Upward) revaluation of assets (6,197)
932 Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged 1,732
to the deficit on the provision of services in the Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure Statement
(3,882) Sub Total (4,465)
363 Write down re gains derived from depreciation differences, between 420
historic costs and current value
14 Write down of accumulated gains on disposed assets 0
(27,899) Balance as at 31 March (31,944)

19. Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different

arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the

acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. Itis

debited with the cost of acquisition/enhancement as depreciation, revaluation and impairment

losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement. It is credited with the amounts set aside to finance the costs of

acquisition/enhancement. The account also contains accumulated gains/losses on assets

pre-dating 1 April 2007.

Page6kl2




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2021/22 2 2022/23
£'000 < £'000
(16,180) Balance as at 1 April (18,769)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to
the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:
1,457 Depreciation of tangible non-current assets 1,518
26 Amortisation of intangible assets 24
4,900 Write down Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute 30 3,319
(REFCUS)
943 Revaluation losses taken to Comprehensive & Expenditure Statement - 3,556
other assets
0 Revaluation losses taken to Comprehensive & Expenditure Statement - 23
investment assets
(2,595) Revaluation gains and reversal of prior losses taken to Comprehensive (1,664)
Income & Expenditure Statement - other assets
(431) Revaluation gains taken to Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (166)
- investment assets
0 Impairment losses/reversal of prior impairment losses taken to 0
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement - other assets
76 Disposal & derecognition of assets - write out of notional net book value 506
Write down of Revaluation Reserve:
(363) Write down of Revaluation Reserve depreciation (gains) 18 (420)
(14) Write down of Revaluation Reserve accumulated gains on disposed assets 18 0
Capital financing applied in the year:
(201) Capital financing - capital receipts 32/15 (27)
(4,829) Capital financing - Government grants and external contributions 32 (3,462)
(573) Capital financing - capital reserves 32 (1,812)
(29) Capital financing - direct revenue funding 32 (6)
(1,050) Minimum revenue provision 32 (1,028)
94 Write down of financing long-term debtors 235
(18,769) Balance as at 31 March (18,173)

20. Collection Fund Adjustment Account

This manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and business rates
income in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council
taxpayers and business ratepayers, compared with the statutory arrangements for paying
across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. The balance effectively shows

the Council’s share of the overall Collection Fund surplus, and the deficit for renewable

energy income retained by the Council. The balance at 31 March 2023 was a net surplus of

£190,000 (£3,810,000 deficit at 31 March 2022).

21. Pooled Fund Adjustment Account

The movement in year of £565,000 represents the decrease in value of the CCLA Property
Fund. The fair value is based on public price quotations in an active market for this financial

instrument and without this investment counting as capital expenditure.

Page 113




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

22. Accumulated Absences Account

This absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund from accruing
for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave due carried
forward at 31 March 2023. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General
Fund is neutralised by transfers to or from this Account. The movement on this reserve in
2022/23 was a decrease of £60,000. Following a decision of Executive Management Team
any roll forward of surplus leave at 31 March 2023 was limited to one week’s worth for most
employees.

23. Pensions Reserve

This reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Council accounts for these benefits in the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees. However, statutory
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’'s
contributions to the Kent Pension Fund or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly
responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve of £13,924,000 (reduced from
£62,604,000 in 2021/22) therefore shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and
current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them under
accounting regulations. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been
set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. Details on the movement in 2022/23 are
shown in Note 9(f).

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
66,646 Balance at 1 April 62,604
(6,604) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (49,554)
5,596 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 3,924

credited to the Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive I&E Statement

(3,034) Employer's pension contributions (3,050)
62,604 Balance at 31 March 13,924

Page¢tl4



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Long-Term Spending — Capital

24. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) Assets

Movements in 2022/23:

Operational Assets Non-Operational Assets Total
Land & Vehicles & Assets Under Surplus Assets
Buildings Equipment Infrastructure Community Leased Construction  Assets
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation
As at 1 April 2022 74,191 5,638 2,282 7,845 646 2,085 1,063 93,750
Additions 3,080 441 16 3 0 0 0 3,540
Revaluations 553 0 0 0 0 0 868 1,421
Disposals 0 (229) (854) 0 (69) 0 0 (1,152)
o Reclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o) As at 31 March 2023 77,824 5,850 1,444 7,848 577 2,085 1,931 97,559
% Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
= As at 1 April 2022 (1,269) (4,051) (914) (945)  (646) 0 0 (7,825)
E Depreciation charge (1,180) (202) (39) (96) 0 0 0 (1,517)
Depreciation written out on 1,090 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,090
revaluations
Disposals 0 167 410 0 69 0 0 646
As at 31 March 2023 (1,359) (4,086) (543) (1,041) (577) 0 0 (7,606)
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2023 76,465 1,764 901 6,807 0 2,085 1,931 89,953
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2022 72,922 1,587 1,368 6,900 0 2,085 1,063 85,925

65




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Comparative movements in 2021/22:

91T obed

Operational Assets

Non-Operational Assets

Land & Vehicles & Assets Under Surplus Total
Buildings Equipment Infrastructure Community Leased Construction Assets Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation 68,223 5,502 2,249 7,761 649 3,028 1,047 88,459
As at 1 April 2021
Additions 742 207 33 65 0 0 0 1,047
Revaluations 4,407 (50) 0 0 0 2 3 4,362
Disposals (22) (61) 0 0 (3) (32) 0 (118)
Reclassified 841 40 0 19 0 (913) 13 0
As at 31 March 2022 74,191 5,638 2,282 7,845 646 2,085 1,063 93,750
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairments
As at 1 April 2021 (1,273) (3,938) (875) (850)  (649) 0 0 (7,585)
Depreciation charge (1,121) (201) (39) (95) 0 0 0 (1,456)
Depreciation written out 1,123 50 0 0 0 0 0 1,173
on revaluations
Disposals 2 38 0 0 3 0 0 43
As at 31 March 2022 (1,269) (4,051) (914) (945) (646) 0 0 (7,825)
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2022 72,922 1,587 1,368 6,900 0 2,085 1,063 85,925
Net Book Value
As at 31 March 2021 66,950 1,564 1,374 6,911 0 3,028 1,047 80,874

66




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The main additions in the year came from the expenditure for redevelopment works at the
Master’'s House, Sheerness (£1,383,000) and window replacements at Swale House,
Sittingbourne (£1,673,000). Other works undertaken included new equipment at Millfield play
area, Faversham (£155,000) and replacement car park ticket machines throughout the
borough (£112,000).

Asset ‘disposals’ included the derecognition of multiple Infrastructure assets for areas of land
lying below non-SBC highways. As the Council is not responsible for the highways it is not
appropriate to retain the historic cost of this land in the Council’s asset register so the records
of these assets have been removed. Other disposals included removal of the previous car
park ticket machines and replaced play equipment (including two play areas which had been
subject to malicious fire damage).

The economic climate makes it uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its current
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.
If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
assets fall. Itis estimated that the annual depreciation charge for operational buildings would
increase by £31,000 should the useful life of each property be reduced by one year.

Surplus Land & Buildings

The Council’s surplus assets have been revalued this year and the inputs used to measure
their fair value have been assessed as being within hierarchy Level 2 for valuation purposes
(see accounting policies note for explanation of fair value valuation input levels).

This confirms that no significant unobservable inputs have been used in the valuation of the
Council’s surplus assets and that they are all valued to their highest and best value.

Significant changes in any of the judgements made on fair values could result in a
significantly lower or higher fair value measurement for these assets. If the value of the
Council’s surplus assets were to reduce by 10% this would result in £193,000 being charged
to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

25. Non-Current Asset Valuation

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment
which is required to be measured at current value is revalued at least every five years. The
freehold and leasehold properties which comprise the Council’s property portfolio have, for this
and past years, been valued by Wilks, Head and Eve Chartered Surveyors.

In 2022/23 Wilks, Head and Eve valued Property, Plant and Equipment assets, and also
Investment and Held for Sale assets, to a total value of £69,830,000. This total value comprises
of valuations carried out on 1 January 2023 totalling £1,550,000 and 31 March 2023 totalling
£68,280,000. Any increase in valuation of the Held for Sale asset must be restricted so this
valuation was reduced by £82,000. Additional valuations were obtained from Canterbury
Auction Galleries for three Heritage assets (public sculptures), valued at £165,000.

An impairment review was also carried out by Wilks, Head and Eve as part of the valuation
contract. The impairment review considered if there were material differences to the valuations
performed at 1 January 2023 which would require these to be updated at 31 March 2023, but
the result was that there were no material changes to the valuations advised. David Johnson
MRICS, a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and an employee of the
Council, reviewed both tasks.

Pagle 117



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The table below shows the progress of the rolling programme of revaluation of the Council’'s non-current PPE assets:

Carried at historical cost
Carried at depreciated historical cost
Valued at current value as at:
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23

Land & Vehicles &
Buildings Equipment Infrastructure Community Leased Construction Buildings Equipment

Assets Under

Surplus
Land &

Total
Property,
Plant &

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
0 0 901 6,807 0 2,085 0 9,793

0 1,764 0 0 0 0 0 1,764

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,221 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,221
1,900 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,900
8,452 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,452
2,448 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,448
62,444 0 0 0 0 0 1,931 64,375
76,465 1,764 901 6,807 0 2,085 1,931 89,953

T 2bed

Total Cost/VValuation as at 31 March 2023

= , . :
odJsing Wilks, Head and Eve market data, the Council has undertaken a review of all assets that were valued before 2022/23 to ensure that
their carrying value does not differ materially from current value.

As previously advised, each of the PPE asset classifications are revalued periodically in stages on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in
accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by RICS. In order to ensure consistency in the
valuation of the varying types of property within the different asset classifications, all assets of the same type are valued at the same time,

using the same valuation technique.

The above table shows that Infrastructure and Community Assets are held at historical cost. There is a reducing usefulness to the reader of
the accounts of the historical cost of long-lived assets and as a local authority, the Council’s capital financing is not dependent on the
outstanding historical value of these assets. The historical value of these assets could not be reliably used to inform any decision

considered by a reader of the Accounts.

68




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

26. Losses and Impairments on Non-Current Assets

The Code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for losses and impairments,
and subsequent reversals, charged to the Provision of Services and to Other Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure (net total reversals being credited to these CIES items). These

disclosures are consolidated in Notes 24 and 28, reconciling the movement over the year in
the asset balances for property, plant and equipment and investment properties.

During 2022/23 the Council has recognised a net loss of £1,749,000 in respect of its non-

current assets (recognising a net gain/reversal of prior loss of £2,083,000 in 2021/22).

2021/22
Total
£'000
2,391

204

431

159

0

2,595

3,026
(1,102)

(943)

2,083

2 PPE Investment Heritage 2022/23
< Assets Assets Assets Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revaluation - increase recognised in the 1,440 0 3 1,443
Provision of Services [due to gain or reversal
of prior loss]
Depreciation written out to the Provision of 221 0 0 221
Services (gain or reversal of prior loss)
Total Reversal Prior Loss (credit to deficit) 19 1,661 0 3 1,664
Revaluation - increase recognised in the 19 0 166 0 166
Provision of Services [gain or reversal of prior
loss]
Total Gain (credit to deficit) 1,661 166 3 1,830
Revaluation - decrease recognised in the (3,885) 0 0 (3,885)
Provision of Services (loss)
Depreciation written out to the Provision of 329 0 0 329
Services (loss)
Revaluation - decrease recognised in the 0 (23) 0 (23)
Provision of Services (loss)
Total Losses (debit to deficit) 19 (3,556) (23) 0 (3,579)
Net Total (Loss)/Reversal-Gain Debited/ (1,895) 143 3 (1,749)

Credited to the Provision of Services

The greatest revaluation gains, reversals of previous losses, were incurred on five properties,
being the cinema building, Bourne Place, Sittingbourne £969,000, land and external

components of the hotel building Bourne Place, Sittingbourne £273,000, Central House,
Sittingbourne £136,000, land at Brielle Way, West Minster £85,000, and Swale House council

offices, Sittingbourne £58,000. Ten other properties incurred reversed losses, averaging

£14,000 per property.

One investment property, the West Lane Trading Estate, Sittingbourne, incurred gains
totalling £166,000.

The greatest revaluation losses on PPE assets were incurred on five properties, the losses

being Swale House council offices, Sittingbourne £1,700,000, the Master’s House, Sheerness

£1,486,000, Swallows Leisure Centre, Sittingbourne £120,000, Princes Street Retail Park,
Sittingbourne £118,000 and the roof and electrical components of the hotel building Bourne

Place, Sittingbourne £112,000. Two other properties incurred losses, averaging £10,000 per

property.

Minimal revaluation losses were incurred on three investment properties totalling £23,000.

Page 119




| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

27. Heritage Assets

Reconciliation of the carrying value of Heritage Assets held by the Council:

War Historical

Memorials Items of Total

& Public  Civic  Cultural Civic  Heritage

Statues Regalia Interest  Clocks Assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation
As at 1 April 2022 107 401 115 1,568 2,191
Additions 0 0 0 83 83
Revaluations 58 0 0 0 58
As at 31 March 2023 165 401 115 1,651 2,332
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairments
As at 1 April 2022 0 0 0 (1) (1)
Depreciation charge 0 0 0 (1) (1)
As at 31 March 2023 0 0 0 (2) (2)
Net Book ValueAs at 31 March 2023 165 401 115 1,649 2,330
Net Book ValueAs at 31 March 2022 107 401 115 1,567 2,190

The War Memorials and Public Statues include the Rushenden Hill stone sculpture
“Shoalstone”, the bronze wreath and stone plinth war memorial at Central Avenue,
Sittingbourne and ‘The Bargee’ sculpture in Sittingbourne High Street. These three assets
were revalued this year as no revaluation had been made of the items since first being added
to the Asset Register.

The Civic Regalia includes the Great Mace of the Borough of Queenborough and other
multiple items of regalia.

The Historical Items includes the Battle of Britain commemorative lace panel, collections of
furniture, silverware and paintings and multiple other items of historic and cultural interest.

The civic clocks include six clocks located at Faversham, Sittingbourne (2), Milton,
Queenborough and Sheerness. The highest clock value of £1.25 million is for the clock and
tower in Sheerness High Street, a grade Il listed structure of cast iron construction, built in
1902 to commemorate the coronation of King Edward VII.

28. Investment Properties
The following items of income and expenditure in relation to investment properties have been

included within Financing and Investment in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement (Note 11):

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
(256) Rental income (310)
47 Direct operating expenses 67
(209) Net gain (243)

The net gain on revaluation for investment properties in the year was £143,000 (£431,000
gain in 2021/22). The Council’s investment property portfolio has been assessed as input
hierarchy Level 2 for valuation purposes (see accounting policies note for explanation of fair

Page %20




| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

value valuation input levels).

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000

3,599 Balance as at 1 April 4,030

431 Gains from revaluations 166

0 Losses from revaluations (23)

4,030 Balance as at 31 March 4,173

The fair value of investment properties has been based on the market approach using current
market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in
the Council area. Market conditions for these assets are such that the level of observable
inputs are significant with no significant Level 3 inputs used, leading to the properties being
categorised as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. In estimating the fair value of the Council’s
investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties has been applied.

Significant changes in any of the judgements made on fair values could result in a
significantly lower or higher fair value measurement for these assets. If the value of the
Council’s investment assets were to reduce by 10% this would result in £417,000 being
charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.

29. Assets Held for Sale

The sole asset has a current net book value of £100,000. The value of the property was
assessed to its highest and best use, input hierarchy Level 2 for valuation purposes (see
accounting policies note for explanation of fair value valuation input levels); however, the
value is restricted to no greater than its original net book value as an asset Held for Sale in
accordance with accounting requirements (any higher assessed value may only be
recognised when actual gain is achieved upon its disposal).

30. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

REFCUS relates to capital expenditure for which the Council does not hold any non-current
assets (for example, grants paid to external organisations). As there is no continuing benefit
derived from this expenditure, it is treated as revenue expenditure and allocated in the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement in the same year that it was incurred.

Page 121



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 Grant Area Funding Provider £'000
1,572 Disabled Facilities Grants Mandatory Grants  DLUHC 1,679
2,808 Queenborough & Rushenden Klondyke Land  HCA 1,253

57 Rainbow Homes (SBC Housing Company) SBC 97
25 Winter Warmth Grants DLUHC 72
St. Michael's Church boundary wall,
0 Sittingbourne SBC 70
50 Coastal Monitoring EA 54
0 Painters Forstall new community hall grant SBC 45
131 Shared Information Technology Service SBC 27
0 Bartons Point Drainage project SBC 20
2 Housing Repair Grants (over 60) SBC 2
60 Sheerness War Memorial SBC 0
60 Faversham Creek Footpath SBC 0
47 Kemsley Community Facilities - SBC Grant SBC 0
20 Murston Old Church SBC 0
Thistle Hill Community Centre, Solar PV
20 Installation SBC 0
16 Play Improvements, Diligent Drive SBC 0
Sheerness War
16 Sheerness War Memorial Memorial Trust 0
15 Sheppey Sea Cadets Building Works SBC 0
1 Sittingbourne High Street Footpath Spirit of Sittingbourne 0
4,900 3,319

31. Commitments under Capital Contracts

The contractual commitments and commitment to spend at 31 March 2023 totalled
£7,731,000 (£531,000 at 31 March 2022). The major commitments were:

e £7,035000 Waste Vehicle fleet
o £ 568,910 Housing Repair Grants — Disabled Facilities Grants

A Letter of Intent has been signed with partners re the Waste Vehicle fleet. These vehicles
will be used for the new Waste and Street cleansing contract which starts on 24 March 2024
and is an 8 year contract.

Page 7222



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

32. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The table below shows the total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year, together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. The actual Capital Financing
Requirement is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that
has yet to be financed.

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
48,373 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 47,774
1,151 Property, plant and equipment 3,623
4,900 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 3,319
32 Long-term loans 25
6,083 6,967
Sources of Finance:
(201) Capital receipts (27)
(4,829) Government grants & external contributions (3,462)
Sums set aside from revenue:
(573) Capital reserves (1,812)
(29) Direct revenue funding (6)
(1,050) Minimum revenue provision (MRP) (1,028)
(6,682) Total Sources of Finance (6,335)
47,774 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 48,406
Explanation of Movements in Capital Financing Requirement in Year:
Capital expenditure to be funded from future MRP when assets are
451 operational 1,660
(1,050) Reduction in underlying need to borrow (MRP) (1,028)
(599) Total increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 632

Page 123



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Creditors and Debtors

33. Long-Term Creditors

As consideration for the extension of a current lease of 99 years, tenants have paid the
Council a premium of £60,000.

34. Short-Term Creditors

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£'000 £'000
(4,210) Business rates - pool share (7,498)
(1,782) Business rates - central government share (6,452)
(168) Capital grants - receipts in advance (2,216)
(6,821) Business rates relief grant funding - Department for Levelling (2,214)
Up, Housing and Communities
(356) Business rates - KCC and Kent Fire and Rescue Service (1,290)
shares
0 Energy Bill Support scheme grant - Department for Levelling (960)
Up, Housing and Communities
(1,963) Business rates and council taxpayers (674)
(7,109) Coronavirus business support grants (50)
(1,636) Renewable energy - KCC 0
(1,425) S106 payments - KCC 0
(5,781) Other (3,369)
(31,251) Total creditors (24,723)
(8,297) Receipts in advance (218)
(39,548) (24,941)

The increase in central Government and major precepting authorities shares for business
rates is due to the Collection Fund returning to a surplus position for 2022/23 (deficit in
2021/22).

The increase in the business rates pool share reflects two years settlements currently
outstanding. This is down to an audit backlog, which means the business rates pool has not
been able to be closed for 2021/22 as well as 2022/23.

Other creditors include all other creditors at year end with balances below £0.5m.
35. S106 Deferred Revenue Receipts

Section 106 (S106) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 278 of The
Highways Act 1980 permits local planning authorities to enter into enforceable ‘planning
obligations’ with landowners and/or developers. Each agreement has a deed setting out its
purpose. Each agreement has been examined to determine when assets and liabilities need
to be recognised on the Balance Sheet or income should be recognised. These sums
represent monies received from developers as part of an agreement to maintain a designated
piece of land, typically for leisure/recreation purposes, split between short and long-term use.

36. Capital Grants and Contributions

The Capital Grants and Contributions account is a creditor account used for grants and
contributions where conditions are outstanding. It is used for the funding of future capital

Page 724



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

expenditure. This includes monies received for S106 purposes (see Note 35) to fund new
facilities provided as part of an agreement with developers.

31 March 2022
£'000
(4,554) S106 held for Third Parties
(4,010) Disabled Facilities Grants
(118) Levelling Up Fund
Klondyke land at Queenborough &
(51) Rushenden, Homes England grant
Redevelopment of Master's House,
(18) Sheerness, decarbonisation grant
(283) Other
S106 Capital Funding:
(643) Housing
(606) Open Spaces
(327) Play Areas
(239) Air Quality & Ecology
(1,988) Other
(12,838) Total

31 March 2022
£'000

(12,838) Total

(176) Due to spend within one year (short-term creditors)
(12,662) Due to spend in more than one year (long-term liabilities)

Expenditure  Income 31 March 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000
2,701 (3,773) (5,625)
2,103 (2,471) (4,377)

85 (46) (78)
1,253 (1,202) 0)
83 (64) 0
499 (876) (659)
0 (383) (1,026)

96 (100) (610)
10 (80) (397)

0 (81) (319)

21 (31) (1,998)
6,852 (9,105) (15,091)
31 March 2023

£'000

(2,338)

(12,753)

(15,091)

In 2022/23 nothing was repaid. The S106 monies held for third parties is largely due to
developments (£5.625m) where the S106 monies being held are to fund services such as
education, social care, health care and highways to be provided by other public bodies and

not Swale Borough Council.

37. Provisions

NNDR Appeals Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2022 (4,355) (59) (4,414)
Additional provisions made (1,182) (80) (1,262)
Amounts used 817 0 817
Balance at 31 March 2023 (4,721) (139) (4,860)
Long term (1,639) (59) (1,698)
Short term (3,082) (80) (3,162)
(4,721) (139) (4,860)

NNDR Appeals

This provision is the Council’s share of the provision for appeals against NNDR ratings, based
on estimates of the actual liability at 31 March 2023. An estimation is also made about how
much is likely to be settled within 12 months (short term), and how much may take longer to
agree and settle. Further information is provided in Note 51.

Page 125



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Other Provisions

Other provisions cover the potential liabilities arising from the insurance claims with the former
Municipal Mutual Insurance Company (MMI), as well as a provision for staff exit payments.

In 1992 MMI declared that it would be going into “run off” (similar to a company going into
administration) and control was passed to a scheme administrator, who has implemented a
“Scheme of Arrangement”.

38. Contingent Liabilities

The Council is aware of an ongoing enforcement case that is currently being appealed. If the
enforcement notice is upheld but the appellant does not comply, the Council may need to
address the issue directly and incur significant costs in doing so. At this time, the potential
cost cannot be reliably measured.

39. Long-Term Debtors — Other

Long-term debtors are those that fall due after a period of at least one year.

31 March 31 March
2022 2023
£'000 £'000
1,949 Housing repair loans 1,748
497 Council tax - KCC, Kent Fire and Rescue Service, and Kent 0
Police & Crime Commissioner shares
46 Business rates - central government share 0
Business rates - KCC and Kent Fire and Rescue Service
10 shares 0
103 Rent deposit scheme 114
90 Assisted car purchase loans 51
118 Opportunities for Sittingbourne Limited 118
81 Other long-term loans 72
2,894 Total debtors 2,103
Impairment for doubtful debt
(78) Rent deposit scheme (88)
(10) Assisted car purchase loans 9)
(88) Total impairment for doubtful debt (97)
2,806 Netlong-term debtors 2,007

The 31 March 2022 comparatives have been restated for other long-term loans to include
loans to Faversham Town Football Club Limited, Queenborough Harbour Trust Community
Interest Company and Borden Sport Limited, which were previously shown separately.
Impairments for doubtful debt has also been separated out from the list of debtors.

Page %26



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

40. Short-Term Debtors

31 March 31 March
2022 2023
£'000 £'000
Council tax - KCC, Kent Fire and Rescue Service and Kent Police & Crime
4,877 Commissioner shares 5,445
1,981 Business rates - pool share 4,563
4,617 Housing benefits - Department for Work & Pensions 3,606
4,215 Business rates and council taxpayers 3,174
2,052 Housing benefits overpayments 1,891
1,311 Sundry debtors 1,904
458 Rental income 806
497 VAT - HM Revenue and Customs 552
589 Legal services income - TWBC and MBC 0
229 Additional coronavirus funding (DLUHC) 0
2,393 Other 1,006
23,219 Total debtors 22,947
Impairment for doubtful debt
(1,296) Housing benefit overpayments (1,209)
(2,234) Other (1,849
(3,530) Total impairment for doubtful debt (3,058)
19,689 Net short-term debtors 19,889

There are no non-financial assets (e.g. housing benefit overpayments, council tax or business
rate payers) that are outstanding debt as at the reporting date that have not been impaired.
Housing benefit overpayments provision for debt impairment is based on the recovery action,
the percentage of debt paid to date and the age of the debt. Further details for council tax
and business rate payers can be found within the Collection Fund Note 50.

As at 31 March 2023 the Council has a gross balance for sundry debtors of £5.1m. A review
of significant balances suggested that an impairment for doubtful debts of 36% (£1.8m) was
appropriate. However, if collection rates were to fall, the cost of covering the impairment of
doubtful debts would require an additional £18,000 to be set aside for every 1% reduction in
collection rates.

The increase in the business rates pool share reflects two years settlements currently
outstanding. This is down to an audit backlog, which means the business rates pool has not
been able to be closed for 2021/22 as well as 2022/23.

41. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts. The
balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2022 31 March 2023
£'000 £'000

7 Cash at bank 60

(140) Cashintransit (1,445)

(133) (1,384)

15,735 Money market funds (Note 42 table 4) 6,550

15,602 3,782

Page 127



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Financial Instruments

42. Financial Instruments

8¢T obed

a) Categories of Financial Instruments.

The following categories of financial instrument (and non-financial assets and liabilities) are disclosed on the face of the Balance

Sheet as at 31 March.

Financial Assets Non-Current Current
Investments Debtors Investments Debtors Total Total
[ 2023 " 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amortised cost 0 0 2,007 2,253 0 0 2,732 3,815 4,739 6,068
Fair value through profit and loss 2,863 3,428 0 0 0 7,600 0 0 2,863 11,028
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,166 15,602 5,166 15,602
Total financial assets 2,863 3,428 2,007 2,253 0 7,600 7,898 19,417 12,768 32,698
Non-financial assets 0 0 0 553 0 O 17,157 15,873| 17,157 16,426
Total 2,863 3,428 2,007 2,806 0 7,600 25,065 35,290| 29,925 49,124
Financial Liabilities Non-Current Current
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors Total Total
[ 2023 " 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amortised cost 0 0 (60) (60)| (10,000) (10,000) (6,039) (7,697)|(16,099) (17,757)
Total financial liabilities 0 0 (60) (60)| (10,000) (10,000) (6,039) (7,697)[(16,099) '(17,757)
Non-financial liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 (18,902) (31,850)|(18,902) (31,850)
Total 0 0 (60) (60)| (10,000) (10,000) (24,941) (39,547)| (35,001) (49,607)

78




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

b) Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement under Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure are as follows:

Table 3 — Gains and Losses

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
Financial liabilities
49 Interest costs on loans 90
Financial assets - interestincome:

(2) Amortised cost: fixed term deposits and call accounts (150)
(111) Fair value through profit and loss: money market funds and CCLA (555)
(512) (Gains)/losses from change in fair value (note 11) 565
(576) Net (gain)/loss for the year (49)

c) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Financial instruments assets which are classified at amortised cost and financial
instruments liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Financial
instruments which are not classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance
Sheet at fair value. For money market funds and the Church, Charities and Local
Authorities (CCLA) Property Fund, their fair value is taken from the market price. The
Council has invested £3m in the CCLA Property Fund which is carried in the Balance
Sheet at its fair value as at 31 March 2023 of £2.863m the difference being posted to
the Pooled Fund Adjustment Account. When comparing the Balance Sheet value of
financial instruments valued at amortised cost to what their value would be at fair
value, the only difference is for the two external loans whose fair value at 31 March
2023 is £9.997m (£9.982m at 31 March 2022).

d) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Council’s overall
risk management programme takes account of the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund
services. Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Council in
the annual Treasury Management Strategy.

The Treasury Management Strategy requires frequent review of interest rate exposure that
feeds into the setting and monitoring of the annual budget. This allows any adverse changes
to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise as to whether new borrowing taken out
should be at fixed or variable rates. It is the aim of the Council to minimise interest paid on
borrowing and maximise the interest earned on investments but, in the case of investments,
protection of the capital sum must take precedence over the rate of return.

The 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Council on 23 February 2022
and can be obtained from the Council’s website using the following link: Agenda for Council
on Wednesday, 23 February 2022, 7.00 pm (swale.gov.uk)

The Council provides written principles for overall risk management as well as written policies
within its Treasury Management Strategy covering the following risks and the investment of
surplus cash balances:

Page 129


https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3501
https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=128&MId=3501

Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

e Credit Risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
Council;

¢ Liquidity Risk — the possibility that the Council might not have the funds available to
meet its payment commitments; and,

e Market Risk — the possibility that a financial gain or loss might arise for the Council
due to movements in interest rates, market prices, foreign currency exchange rates,
etc. The Council’s investment in the CCLA is subject to the risk of falling commercial
property prices. This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to property
investments of £3m. A 5% fall in commercial property prices would result in a
£150,000 charge to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services which is then
transferred to the Pooled Fund Adjustment Account.

Credit Risk

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (and subsequent
amendments) and complies with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions (counterparties), as well
as credit exposure to the Council’s customers. The Council protects the security of the cash it
deposits with counterparties using a number of risk management techniques. Principal
among these is the evaluation of counterparty risk, which uses a combination of credit ratings
and limits on the term and maximum value of any deposits.

The Council seeks to reduce counterparty risk by adjusting the maximum amounts that may
be invested with institutions. The details can be found in the Council’'s Treasury Management
Strategy.

The CCLA Property Fund is a long term investment and is not likely to be surrendered in the
near future and where the expectation is that values will return to or exceed the original sum
insured over the medium to long-term.

The table below summarises the Council’s investment and borrowing portfolio at 31 March
2023. All investments made were in line with the Council’'s approved credit rating criteria at
the time of placing the investment, and still met those criteria at 31 March 2023.

Page 30



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements \
Table 4 — Investments and Borrowing

Balance Counterparty Long-Term Fair Balance Invested at 31 March 2023
Invested at Rating Value Uptol Upto3 Greater Total

31 March  (MMF =Money Market Funds) Level month months than3
2022 months

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000

735 Invesco MMF AAAMmMf 1 0

0 JPM Liquidity MMF AAAMmMf 1 0

3,000 SSgA MMF AAAmMmMf 1 0

3,000 Goldman Sachs MMF AAAMmMf 1 0

3,000 Morgan Stanley MMF AAAMmMf 1 2,130 2,130

3,000 Black Rock MMF AAAmMmMf 1 3,000 3,000

3,000 Aberdeen MMF AAAMmMf 1 0

0 Deutsche MMF AAAMmMf 1 1,420 1,420

15,735 Total cash & cash equivalents 6,550 0 0 6,550

7,600 Debt Management Office AA- 1 0

7,600 Total short-term investments 0 0 0 0

3,428 CCLA property fund 1 2,863 2,863

3,428 Total long-term investments 0 0 2863 2,863

0

26,763 Total investments 6,550 0 2863 9413

(5,000) Derbyshire County Council 2 0

(5,000) London Borough of Islington 2 0

0 West Midlands Combined Authority 2 (5,000) (5,000)

0 North Northamptonshire Council 2 (5,000) (5,000)

(10,000) Total external borrowing 0 0 (10,000) (10,000)

The long-term rating is the benchmark measure of probability of default. The default based
on the experience gathered over the last five financial years is nil and the default adjusted for
current market conditions is nil. Therefore, the estimated maximum exposure to default is nil
as at 31 March 2023 (nil as at 31 March 2022).

The rating above is from the Fitch credit rating agency. A description of the grading is
provided below:

o  AAAMmMf Funds have very strong ability to meet the dual objectives of providing
liquidity and preserving capital.
o AA- Expectations of very low default risk.
Descriptions of the fair value level ratings are given below:

e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the Council can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs — measurements other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable (e.g. they can be measured or found from existing data and records) for
the asset, either directly or indirectly.

Page 131



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Leases
43. Operating Leases

Council as Lessee

Plant and equipment — as at 31 March 2023 the Council had 14 vehicles on a contract hire-
operating lease basis (three service vehicles, ten electric cars and one Mayor’s electric car).

The expenditure charged to the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement during 2022/23 in relation to these leases was £62,000 (£59,000 in 2021/22).

Council as Lessor

The Council owns property which is leased to third parties. These leases have been classed
as operating leases as the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the Council as lessor.
The 2021/22 figures have been restated within the category breakdown, but the total remains
the same.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under these non-cancellable leases in future
years are shown below:

2021/22 Period 2022/23

£'000 £'000
restated

293 Not later than 1 year 91

168 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 332

31,487 Laterthan5 years 42917

31,947 Total 43,341

The Council’s Relationship with Other Organisations

44. Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allow readers to assess the extent
to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council —it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, providing
funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the
Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, business rates, housing benefits). Un-
ringfenced grants received from Government departments are set out in the Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure Statement and ring-fenced grants credited to services are shown in
Note 12.

Members and Officers

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies.
The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2022/23 is shown in Note 8. The Council maintains
a ‘Register of Members’ Interests’ which can be found on the Council website at:

Page 832



Notes to the Core Financial Statements \

https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/performance-and-transparency/councillors-and-
elected-members/register-of-interests

There has been an approach to elected Members and senior management seeking from them
a declaration that neither they, nor their close family, nor anyone in the same household, have
been involved in any material transactions with the Council. Returns were received in respect
of the 2022/23 financial year from Members and senior officers and there were no
transactions considered of material significance to warrant separate disclosure in the Annual
Accounts. During 2022/23, no officers declared a pecuniary interest in accordance with
section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 with the exception that two senior officers and
two Members are the Directors of Swale Rainbow Homes, a senior officer and a member are
Directors of Opportunities for Sittingbourne, and one senior officer is a Director of SBC
Holding Company 1. These are all companies owned by the Council (see Note 45).

Precepting Authorities

The Council collects council tax on behalf of its three major precepting authorities who in turn
precept the Council. In addition, Kent County Council and Kent Fire and Rescue Service
receive its share of business rates collected by the Council. Details are set out in the
Collection Fund on pages 86 — 90. Kent County Council also administers the Kent Pension
Fund on behalf of Swale and other Kent districts (see pages 51 — 56).

45. Group Accounts

The Code contains detailed requirements for the production of group accounts and a review
was undertaken to identify any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures, which would establish
whether a group relationship exists for the purposes of the Council’s Statement of Accounts.
Three interests were identified and details of these are set out below:

« Opportunities for Sittingbourne Limited (Company Number 09400214) — This company
was incorporated in 2015 and is a joint venture between the Council and U&lI, the lead
partner in the Spirit of Sittingbourne consortium. The only transaction undertaken has
been the purchase of 34 High Street Sittingbourne which is currently being let. The
Council’s interest in the entity has been assessed to be non-controlling but having a
significant influence and so needs to be accounted for as an Associate. One senior officer
and one member are Directors of the company.

o SBC Holding Company 1 Limited (Company Number 12417065) — This company was
registered on 21 January 2020. The Council set-up this company as a nominee company
to hold a property jointly with the Council to enter into and manage the lease
arrangements. A Declaration of Trust has been executed by the Council and the
Company whereby the Company stated that its interest is wholly under the Council’s
control. One senior officer is a Director of SBC Holding Company 1.

« Swale Rainbow Homes Ltd (Company Number 13338973) — This company was registered
on 15 April 2021. The company is to deliver affordable homes. It is wholly owned by the
Council. In 2022/23 the Council paid £246,000 in relation to this company to fund
development and assessment costs. The Company will publish its own separate accounts
for 2022/23. Two senior officers and two Members are the Directors of Swale Rainbow
Homes.

Further information on all the above companies is available from the Companies House
website https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/companies-house. As at 31 March
2023 the total investment in these entities has been assessed as immaterial and the Council
has decided that group accounts are not required.

Page 133


https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/performance-and-transparency/councillors-and-elected-members/register-of-interests
https://swale.gov.uk/news-and-your-council/performance-and-transparency/councillors-and-elected-members/register-of-interests
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/companies-house

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Further Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis

46. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement recognised by the Council in
the year in accordance with proper accounting practices, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

yeT obed

Accounting and funding basis adjustments 2022/23 Usable Reserves
Capital Capital
General Fund Receipts  Grants Unusable
Balance Reserve Unapplied | Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Pension Costs (874) 0 0 874
Pooled Fund Adjustment Account (565) 0 0 565
Holiday Pay 60 0 0 (60)
Council Tax and Business Rates 3,999 0 0 (3,999)
Capital Grants moved to Capital Grants Unapplied 229 0 (229) 0
Reversal of entries for capital expenditure (7,111) 0 0 7,111
Total Adjustment to Revenue Resources (4,261) 0 (229) 4,490
Adjustments between Revenue & Capital Resources
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from non-current assets to Capital
Receipts Reserve 130 (130) 0 0
Statutory provision for financing of capital investment (MRP) 1,028 0 0 (1,028)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund 1,813 0 0 (1,813)
Total Adjustments between Revenue & Capital Resources 2,971 (130) 0 (2,841)
Use of the CRR to finance capital expenditure 0 8 0 (8)
Capital grants used to finance capital expenditure 3,435 20 27 (3,482)
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 3,435 28 27 (3,489)
Total Adjustments 2,145 (103) (202) (1,840)

84



Notes to the Core Financial Statements

GeT obed

Accounting and funding basis adjustments 2021/22

Usable Reserves

Capital Capital
General Fund Receipts Grants Unusable
Balance Reserve Unapplied | Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Pension Costs (2,562) 0 0 2,562
Pooled Fund Adjustment Account 512 0 0 (512)
Holiday Pay (330) 0 0 330
Council Tax and Business Rates 3,613 0 0 (3,613)
Capital Grants moved to Capital Grants Unapplied 86 0 (86) 0
Reversal of entries for capital expenditure (4,353) 0 0 4,353
Total Adjustment to Revenue Resources (3,034) 0 (86) 3,120
Adjustments between Revenue & Capital Resources
Transfer of cash sale proceeds from non-current assets to Capital
Receipts Reserve 139 (159) 0 20
Statutory provision for financing of capital investment (MRP) 1,050 0 0 (1,050)
Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund 600 0 0 (600)
Total Adjustments between Revenue & Capital Resources 1,789 (159) 0 (1,630)
Use of the CRR to finance capital expenditure 0 140 0 (140)
Capital grants used to finance capital expenditure 4,797 60 32 (4,889)
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 4,797 200 32 (5,029)
Total Adjustments 3,652 41 (54) (3,539)

85




Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Collection Fund

As a billing authority, Swale Borough Council collects council tax and business rates from
taxpayers and redistributes them to other local authorities and the Government. Because the
Council is collecting these taxes on behalf of others, under statute, it has to hold these
transactions in a separate account known as the Collection Fund.

The amount credited to the General Fund under statute is the Council’s precept or demand for
the year, plus or minus the Council’s share of the surplus/deficit on the Collection Fund for the
previous year.

Surpluses and deficits declared by the Council as the billing authority in relation to the Collection
Fund are apportioned to the Government and other local authorities as appropriate in the
subsequent financial year in their respective proportions.

The council tax and business rate income included in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement is the Council’s share of the Collection Fund’s accrued income for the year. The
difference between this value and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account via the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The Council collects council tax on behalf of the major precepting authorities — KCC, Kent Police
& Crime Commissioner and Kent Fire and Rescue Service, and collects business rates on
behalf of the Government, KCC and Kent Fire and Rescue Service. Parish precepts are paid
from the Council’'s General Fund and are disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement.

Page 836



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Statement

2021/22 2022/23
Business Council o Business Council
Rates Tax Total 2 Rates Tax Total
£'000  £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Income
0 (93,237) (93,237) Council tax receivable 48 0 (98,744) (98,744)
0 (502) (502) Transfer for S13A(1)(C) Reliefs 0 (192) (192)
(48,102) 0 (48,102) Business rates receivable 49 (51,340) 0 (51,340)
0 0 0 Transitional protection payments receivable (60) 0 (60)
(48,102) (93,739) (141,841) Sub Total (51,400) (98,936) (150,336)
Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund forecast deficit
(7,547) 0 (7,547) Central Government (4,586) 0 (4,586)
(6,037) (113)  (6,150) Swale Borough Council (3,668) (56) (3,724)
(1,358) (719)  (2,077) Kent County Council (825) (353) (1,178)
(151) 42) (193) Kent Fire & Rescue Service (92) (21) (113)
0 (108) (108) Kent Police & Crime Commissioner 0 (53) (53)
(15,093) (982) (16,075) Sub Total (9,171) (483)  (9,654)
(63,195) (94,721) (157,916) Total Income (60,571) (99,419) (159,990)
Expenditure
Precepts, demands and shares:
25,303 0 25,303 Central Government 23,603 0 23,603
20,242 10,430 30,672 Swale Borough Council 18,882 10,924 29,806
4554 68,157 72,711 Kent County Council 4,248 71512 75,760
506 3,883 4,389 Kent Fire & Rescue Service 472 4,030 4,502
0 10,480 10,480 Kent Police & Crime Commissioner 0 11166 11,166
50,605 92,950 143555 Sub Total 47,205 97,632 144,837
186 0 186 Cost of collection 186 0 186
3,406 0 3,406 Disregard amounts - renewable energy 3,336 0 3,336
167 0 167 Transitional protection payments 0 0 0
1,084 698 1,782 Allowance for debt impairment 50 (1,001) 863 (138)
(1,121) 0 (1,121) Appeals charged to the Collection Fund (2,042) 0 (2,042
Change in provision for check,
150 0 150 challenge & appeal 51 2,956 0 2,956
3,872 698 4,570 Sub Total 3,435 863 4,298
54477 93,648 148,125 Total Expenditure 50,640 98,495 149,135
(8,718) (1,073)  (9,791) Surplus Movement for the Year (9,931) (924) (10,855)
17,922 2,213 20,135 Deficit as at 1 April 9,204 1,140 10,344
9,204 1,140 10,344 (Surplus)/Deficit as at 31 March 47 (727) 216 (511)

47. Collection Fund Surplus / Agency Arrangements

Swale Borough Council’s element of the Collection Fund surplus is £266,000 as at 31 March
2023 (£3,811,000 deficit in 2021/22) and is shown in the Balance Sheet within the Collection
Fund Adjustment Account (Note 20). Amounts relating to precepting authorities and
Government are shown in the Balance Sheet as a net debtor or creditor. This reflects that billing
authorities are acting as agents of the precepting authorities and Government.

Page 137



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The collection fund balance at 31 March 2023 split into its attributable parts is shown below:

2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23
Total Business Rates Council Tax  Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
4,602 Central Government (364) 0 (364)
3,811 Swale Borough Council (291) 25 (266)
1,663 Kent County Council (65) 158 93
140 Kent & Medway Fire & Rescue Service ) 9 2
128 Kent Police & Crime Commissioner 0 24 24
10,344 Balance as at 31 March (727) 216 (511)

The business rates deficit moved to a surplus in 2022/23 mainly due to prior year business rates
reliefs relating to the coronavirus pandemic being offset by government grants.

48. The Calculation of the Council Tax Base

The Council Tax is primarily a property based tax and is calculated for an average Band D
property by dividing the net expenditure (to be met by the tax) of KCC, Kent Police & Crime
Commissioner, Kent Fire and Rescue Service and Swale Borough Council by the tax base for
Swale which is 48,939.46 (48,040.12 in 2021/22). This figure is the equivalent number of Band
D properties in the area after allowing for the relative proportions payable by all other bands and
the fact that some of those properties may pay a reduced amount because of discounts.

The basic Council Tax payable for each band in 2022/23 is listed below:

Band Basic Tax Proportion of Number of Band D
£ Band D Charge Equivalent Dwellings

A 126.18 6/9 4,208.43
B 147.21 7/9 9,608.66
C 168.24 8/9 12,716.48
D 189.27 9/9 10,222.38
E 231.33 11/9 6,456.80
F 273.39 13/9 3,571.94
G 315.45 15/9 1,951.34
H 378.54 18/9 203.42

Total 48,939.46

More detail on the calculation of the Council Tax base can be found here: Dec 2021 Council
Tax Base 2022-23 v2.pdf (swale.gov.uk)

Additional amounts are payable for precepts levied by the Parish and Town Councils within
the Borough.

The level of non-payment provided for in the calculation of the tax base for 2022/23 was
1.01% (1.06% in 2021/22). The original anticipated income from the tax base of 48,939.46,
(calculated on 10 December 2021), and Band D of £1,994.95 (Band D £1,961.01 plus
average parish precept of £33.94) was £97,631,776. The actual income was £98,744,142.

49. Income Collectable from Business Ratepayers

The Council initially retains 40% of business rates collected during the year, after deductions
for mandatory and discretionary reliefs, the cost of income collections including losses,

Page 38


https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s21704/Dec%202021%20Council%20Tax%20Base%202022-23%20v2.pdf
https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s21704/Dec%202021%20Council%20Tax%20Base%202022-23%20v2.pdf

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

disregard amounts, and the cost of changes to rateable values. It is subject to a tariff that
significantly reduces the actual amount retained by the Council.

The remaining business rates income is paid to the Government (50%), KCC (9%), and Kent
Fire and Rescue Service (1%).

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
(48,102) Business rates receivable (51,340)
167 Transitional protection payments (60)
1,084 Allowance for debt impairment (1,001)
186 Cost of collection 186
(971) Movement in Appeals Provision 914
3,406 Renewable energy disregard amount 3,336
(44,231) Business Rates Income (47,965)

The rateable value for the Council’s area at the end of the financial year 2022/23 was
£136,503,000 (£136,328,000 for 2021/22).

The business rate multiplier set for 2022/23 was 51.2p (2021/22 was 51.2p). Small
businesses have a lower rate multiplier of 49.9p (2021/22 was 49.9p).

50. Debt Impairment

It is the policy of the Council that impairment for debt provisions for council tax and business
rates are charged to the Collection Fund. The following provisions have been made against
the possible non-collection of Collection Fund debt:

2021/22 2022/23
Business Rates Council Tax Business Rates Council Tax
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(2,688) (3,184) Balance as at 1 April (3,191) (3,428)
581 454 Less amounts written off 149 103
(1,084) (698) (Increase)/decrease in provision 1,001 (863)
(3,191) (3,428) Balance as at 31 March (2,041) (4,188)
(1,276) (384) Swale Borough Council's share (816) (459)

Amounts written off are charged directly to the provision for debt impairment. Any amounts
written off in excess of the provision will be a charge to the Collection Fund. Council tax
provision for debt impairment is based on an analysis of the age of the debt and their
recovery stage. At 31 March 2023, the total council tax outstanding debt was £11.862m
(£9.566m in 2021/22) of which debt one year old was £4.594m, debt between two to five
years old was £6.146m and debt over five years old was £1.122m.

The provision for business rate debt impairment is based on an assessment of the likelihood
of recovery of debt in respect of each financial year since 2007/08. The provision takes into
account the recovery action to date, the legal status of the debtor and potential absconders.
At 31 March 2023, the total business rates outstanding debt was £2.883m (£6.039m in
2021/22) of which debt one year old was £0.902m, debt between two to five years old was
£1.536m and debt over five years old was £0.445m.

Pagge 139



| Notes to the Core Financial Statements

51. Provision for Check, Challenge and Appeals for Business Rates

2021/22 2022/23
£'000 £'000
(11,859) Balance as at 1 April (10,888)
1,121 Less amounts charged to appeals 2,042
(150) (Increase)/decrease in provision (2,956)
(10,888) Balance as at 31 March (11,802)
(4,355) Swale Borough Council's share (4,721)

Amounts refunded as a result of appeals against the 2010 Rateable Valuations (RV) and the
Check, Challenge Appeal (CCA) against the 2017 RV are charged directly to the provision for
alteration of lists and appeals. Any amounts refunded in excess of the provision will be a
charge to the Collection Fund.

There is a regular reassessment of the RV of businesses, carried out in 2010 and 2017. The
provision for appeals for the 2010 RV list is based on outstanding and forecast future appeals
for businesses. For the 2017 RV list, the provision is based on the assumption made at
national level of potential appeals amended to reflect local circumstances and the likelihood of
appeals.

Business rates appeals are particularly difficult to forecast and the outcome of appeals and
their financial impact on the Council are monitored regularly. If the number of properties
under appeal changes, the provision for appeals would require an additional £118,025 for
every 1% increase in total rateable value, under appeal.

Page %40



Glossary

Accruals

The inclusion of outstanding debtors and creditors in the year’s
income, expenditure and capital expenditure.

Amortised Cost

Amortised cost (in relation to financial instruments) is the amount on
initial recognition plus the interest taken to income and expenditure
less cash paid or received for both interest and principal.

Asset

An item having value measurable in monetary terms. A non-current
asset has use and value for more than one year; a current asset is
expected to be converted into cash within a year.

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure,
which adds to and not merely maintains the value of an existing non-
current asset.

Capital Financing

The raising of money to pay for capital expenditure, including
borrowing, revenue financing, usable capital receipts, capital grants
and capital contributions.

Capital Receipts

The proceeds of the sale of capital assets.

Code of Practice on
Local Authority
Accounting in the UK
2022/23 (the Code)

This specifies the principles and practices of accounting required to
prepare a Statement of Accounts which presents “a true and fair view”
of the financial position and transactions of the Council.

Collection Fund

A separate fund maintained by a billing council which records the
expenditure and income relating to council tax and business rates.

Community Assets

Non-current assets that the local council intends to hold in perpetuity,
that have no determinable useful life and that may have restrictions
on their disposal.

Comprehensive

This records all the income the Council has received to fund the day-

:En)fp?er?iliﬁjre to-day expenditure on the services it has provided during the financial
Statement year.

Amounts owed by the Council for works done, goods received or
Creditor services rendered before the end of the accounting period but for

which payments have not been made by the end of that accounting
period.

Current Value

The value of a non-current asset which reflects the economic
environment prevailing for the service or function the asset is
supporting at the reporting date.

Debtor

Amounts due to the Council for works done, goods received or
services rendered before the end of the accounting period but for
which payments have not been received by the end of that accounting
period.

Page 141




Glossary \

Depreciation

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the
non-current assets that have been consumed during the period.

The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

Fair Value liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.
. A reduction in the value of an asset below its carrying amount on the
Impairment

Balance Sheet.

Infrastructure Assets

Non-current assets whose life is of indefinite length and which are not
usually capable of being sold, such as highways and footpaths.

Intangible Assets

These are non-financial assets that do not have physical substance
but are identifiable and controlled by the Council through custom legal
rights (e.g. software).

Internal Borrowing

If capital expenditure is spent which is not immediately financed
through capital receipts or grants, the Council’s underlying need to
borrow (its Capital Financing Requirement) increases, resulting in a
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). When the Council reduces its
cash balances to cover this expenditure then this is called ‘internal
borrowing’.

International Guidelines and rules set by the International Accounting Standards
Financial Reporting |Board that companies and organisations can follow when compiling
Standards financial statements.
Investment Investment properties are those that are used primarily to earn rentals
Properties and/or for capital appreciation.
L Amounts which will become payable by the Council in the short or

Liabilities

long-term.

Information is material if omitting it or misstating it could influence
Materiality decisions that users make on the basis of financial information about

the Council.

Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP)

A charge to the Council’s General Fund balance to make provision for
the repayment of the Council’s past unfunded capital expenditure.

Non-Operational
Assets

Non-current assets which are not used or consumed in the delivery of
services or for the service or strategic objective of the Council.

Operating Lease

A lease where the ownership of the long-term asset remains with the
lessor.

Operational Assets

Non-current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local
council in the direct delivery of those services for which it has either a
statutory or a discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic
objectives of the Council.

Page %42



http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/guideline.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/rule.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/International-Accounting-Standards-Board-IASB.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/International-Accounting-Standards-Board-IASB.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/company.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/organization.html
http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/financial-statement.html

Glossary

Precept

The levy made by those authorities which do not run the local taxation
system, e.g. KCC, Kent Fire and Rescue Service, Kent Police &
Crime Commissioner, on Swale Borough Council which collects the
required income from local taxpayers on their behalf.

Property, Plant and

An asset that has physical substance which is used in the provision of
services and is expected to be in use for longer than one year. The

Expenditure Funded
from Capital under
Statute (REFCUS)

Equipment value is depreciated over the estimated life of the asset.
A provision is made when the Council has a present obligation as a
Provision result of a past event and it is probable that the Council will be
required to settle that obligation.
The accumulation of surpluses and deficits over past years.
Reserves Reserves of a revenue nature are available and can be spent or
earmarked at the discretion of the Council.
Revenue Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for

funding purposes when it does not result in a non-current asset on the
Balance Sheet. Such expenditure is charged to the Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure Statement.

Useful Economic Life

non-current asset.

The period over which the Council derives benefits from the use of a

Acronyms Used:

BEIS Department for Business, IAS International Accounting
Energy & Industrial Strategy Standard
CCA Check, Challenge, Appeal International Financial
IFRS Reporting Standards
CCLA Church, Charities and Local P 9
Authorities KCC Kent County Council
CIPEA Chartered Institute of Public Local Authority (Scotland)
Finance and Accountancy LASAAC | Accounts Advisory
CPI Consumer Price Index Committee
CRR Capital Receipts Reserve LGPS Local Government Pension
_ — Scheme
DFG Disabled Facilities Grants LUF Levelling Up Fund
Department for Levelling Up, . )
DLUHC Housing and Communities MBC Maidstone Borough Council
DWP Department of Works and MIRS I\S/It(;\t/:m::tt In Reserves
Pensions
EA Environment Agency MKS Mid Kent Services
HCA Homes and Communities MMF Money Market Funds
Agency MRP Minimum Revenue Provision
HIF Housing Infrastructure Fund MTFP Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 143




Glossary

Property, Plant and SBC Swale Borough Council

PPE Equipment
quip SMT Strategic Management

PWLB Public Works Loan Board Team

Revenue Expenditure STC Sittingbourne Town Centre
REFCUS gltJ:tifed from Capital under WEC Tunbridge Wells Borough

Council

RICS Royal Instituition of VAT Value Added Tax

Chartered Surveyors

. Valuation Practice Guidance

RPI Retail Price Index VPGA Applications
RV Rateable Value VPS Valuation Technical and
S106 Section 106 — See Note 35 Performance Standards

Page %44




Agenda Iltem 6

Audit Meeting

Meeting Date 23 October 2023

Report Title Audit Committee Annual Report -2022/23
EMT Lead Lisa Fillery — Director of Resources

Head of Service Kathy Woodward — Head of Audit Partnership
Lead Officer Kathy Woodward — Head of Audit Partnership
Classification Open

Recommendations 1. That the Audit Committee Annual Report for 2022/23

(appendix 1) is agreed.

2. That the Chairman of the Audit Committee presents the
report to a meeting of Full Council to demonstrate how
the Committee has discharged its duties

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

Purpose of Report and Executive Summary

The report details how the Audit Committee effectively fulfilled its duties during
2022/23. This report provides assurance to the Council that the Committee has
monitored and addressed issues of governance, risk management and internal
control throughout the year.

Background

The Audit Committee is required to monitor internal and external audit activity,
review and comment on the effectiveness of the Council’'s governance framework
and review and approve the Council’s annual statement of accounts.
Proposals

To agree the Audit Committee Annual Report as attached in Appendix I.

That the Chairman of the Audit Committee presents the report to a meeting of the

Full Council setting out how the Committee has discharged its duties.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

The production and presentation of an annual report is required by this
Committee’s terms of reference. Therefore, no other alternative could be
recommended.

Page 145




5 Consultation Undertaken or Proposed

5.1 The draft report was sent to the Chairman of the Audit Committee for consultation
prior to submission for this meeting.

6 Implications

Issue

Implications

Corporate Plan

None identified at this stage.

Financial,
Resource and
Property

The role of the Audit Committee includes the review of the financial
reports for the Council, including the approval of the Annual
Statement of Accounts.

Legal, Statutory
and Procurement

None identified at this stage.

Crime and
Disorder

None identified at this stage.

Environment and
Climate/Ecological
Emergency

None identified at this stage.

Health and
Wellbeing

None identified at this stage.

Safeguarding of
Children, Young
People and
Vulnerable Adults

None identified at this stage.

Risk Management
and Health and
Safety

None identified at this stage.

Equality and
Diversity

None identified at this stage.

Privacy and Data
Protection

None identified at this stage.

7 Appendices

7.1  The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the

report:

e Appendix I: Audit Committee Annual Report 2022-23

8 Background Papers

Audit committee reports and agendas for 2022/23

Page 146




Appendix |

SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Audit Committee

Annual Report

September 2023

)Swale

’ BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 147



Appendix |

Statement from the Chairman

As the Chair of the Audit Committee, it is my pleasure to introduce the annual report, providing an
overview of the Committee’s activity during the Municipal Year 2022/23.

The Council has continued to face challenges from the impact of the cost-of-living crisis and rising
inflation. As a Committee we have maintained our focus on the issues facing the Council from a
risk, control and governance perspective. This report looks back and gives us opportunity to
reflect on the activity and achievements of the Committee during the Municipal Year 2022/23.

The Committee has discharged its responsibility to provide independent assurance on the
adequacy of the Council’s risk management framework and the associated control environment.
We have also provided robust scrutiny and challenge of the Authority’s financial performance.

During 2022/23 the Committee met four times and | was pleased to note, among the highlights for

the year, our internal auditors provided us with a positive opinion on the Council’s risk, control and

governance. We also reviewed the updated Corporate Risk Register, and provided robust scrutiny
and challenge of the Authority’s financial performance.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank Members and Officers that have supported the
Committee over the last year. Their professionalism, integrity, and openness have helped us to
discuss, challenge and debate key issues and agree solutions and improvements where
appropriate to do so.

.
b«

Councillor Simon Clark — Audit Committee Chairman

Page 148



Purpose of the Committee

The Audit Committee operates in accordance with the Audit Committees, Practical Guidance
for Local Authorities. This guidance (updated in 2022) sets out the purpose of an Audit

Committee and is published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA).

The Committee is independent from other executive management and Cabinet and has clear
reporting lines and rights of access to discharge its responsibilities in line with its Terms of
Reference (Appendix A). This includes direct access to the Council’s Appointed Auditors and
Head of Audit Partnership without the presence of other Officers, where appropriate.

The Committee monitors internal and external audit activity, reviews and comments on the
effectiveness of the Council’s regulatory framework, and reviews and approves the Council’s
annual statements of accounts.

The Committee is not a substitute for the management function in relation to internal or external
audit, risk management, governance, or any other review or assurance function. It is the
Committee's role to examine these functions, and to offer views and recommendations on the way
the management of these functions is conducted.

Swale Borough Council Audit Committee Purpose:

To consider summaries of internal audit reports produced and review management action

taken on associated recommendations. To consider and comment upon any items relevant
to the internal audit function. To receive the annual management letter and report from the
Council’s External Auditors, to include any value for money studies.

Page 149


https://www.cipfa.org/~/media/files/publications/au059_audit_cttee_position-statement_2018.pdf?la=en
https://www.cipfa.org/~/media/files/publications/au059_audit_cttee_position-statement_2018.pdf?la=en

Membership & Meetings

During 2022/23 the Audit Committee was comprised of 9 Members and met 4 times, including a
meeting to elect the chairs only as part of the annual council meeting on 18 May 2022. Changes to
the timetable were once again necessary in 2022/23 to accommodate the changes to the reporting
timetable for final accounts that arose due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Committee is supported throughout the year by senior officers and managers of the Council
who are regularly present. In addition, the Council’s External Auditors (Grant Thornton) regularly
attend meetings of the Committee.

The following table outlines Member and Officer attendance at 2022/23 Audit Committee
meetings.

Name of Attendees Role 18 May 2022 25 July 2022 15 Nov 2022 30 Jan 2023
Clir Derek Carnell Chair Present Present Present Present
Clir Mike Henderson Vice-Chair Present Apologies Absent Present
ClIr Simon Clark Member Present Present Present
Clir Pete Neal Member Present Present Present
Cllr Ann Hampshire Member Apologies Apologies Present Apologies
Clir Angela Harrison Member Present Absent Present Apologies
Clir Peter Marchington | Member Present Present Apologies Apologies
Clir Peter MacDonald | Member Present Present Apologies
Clir Alan Horton Member Present (sub)
Clir Richard Palmer Member Present
Clir Tony Winckless Member Present (sub)
Clir Steve Davey Visiting In attendance
(virtual)
Clir Denise Knights Member Present Present Present Present
(Virtual) (Virtual)
Clir Ken Rowles Visiting In attendance | In attendance
(virtual) (virtual)
ClIr Steve Davey Visiting In attendance
(virtual)
Cllr Cameron Beart Visiting Present (sub) | In attendance
(virtual)
CliIr Tim Gibson Visiting In attendance | In attendance
(virtual) (virtual)
_ Audit Committee Meeting Date
Capacity
18 May 2022 25 July 2022 15 Nov 2022 10-Mar-2021
Larissa Reed Chief Executive In attendance
Claudette Valmond Head of Legal In attendance
Services
David Clifford Monitoring Officer In attendance

Page 150



Lisa Fillery

Director of Resources

In attendance

In attendance

In attendance

Andrew Townsend

Interim Head of Audit
Partnership

In attendance
(virtual)

Alison Blake

Interim Deputy Head
of Audit Partnership

In attendance

Julie Hetherington

Audit Manager

In attendance
(virtual)

In attendance
(virtual)

Darren Wells

External Audit

In attendance
(virtual)

In attendance
(virtual)

Richmond Nyarko

External Audit

In attendance
(virtual)

In attendance
(virtual)

Claire Stanbury

Head of Finance &
Procurement

In attendance

Katherine Woodward

Head of Audit
Partnership

In attendance

Deborah Walton Finance In attendance
(virtual)
Duncan Ellis Officer In attendance
(virtual)
Jo Millard Committee Services In attendance

Philippa Davies

Committee Services

In attendance

In attendance

Billy Attaway

Committee Services

In attendance

In attendance

Kellie Mackenzie

Committee Services

In attendance
(virtual)

In attendance
(virtual)

The Committee received the following all-member training sessions during 2022/23.

e July 2022 — Annual Governance Statement & Role of Internal Audit
e November 2022 — Understanding the Statement of Accounts

e January 2023 — Understanding Treasury Management

In addition Members have also been able to consult Officers with questions outside of the

meetings. The Committee will consider training opportunities as needed during 2023/24.

All Committee agendas, papers and minutes are available on the Council’s website.

Activity

Over the course of the year the Committee considered, examined and made decisions on the
following areas within its Terms of Reference:

Finance Activity

Treasury Management Outturn Report for 21/22 — July 2022

The report presented to Members was prepared in line with the CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury
Management. It included Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Strategy Statement on
Financing and Investment Activities. Members approved the Treasury Management Stewardship report for
2021/22, and the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators.

Page 151


https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=142

Mid-Year Treasury Management Review for 22/23 — Nov 2021

This report was presented to Members. It outlined the mid-year outturn position on treasury management
transactions for 2022/23, including compliance with treasury limits and Prudential and Treasury
Performance Indicators. Members noted the report, and the Prudential and Treasury Management
Indicators.

Annual Financial Report 2021/22 and Audit Findings Report — Nov 21

The report was presented to Members. It outlined the Council’s Annual Financial Report for 2021/22 and
included the External Auditors Findings report and the Letter of Representation for the Committees
consideration. Members noted the External Auditors Findings report and approved the Annual Financial
Report and Letter of Representation.

Treasure Management Strategy 2023/24 — Jan 2023

The report presented to Members included Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Strategy
Statement on Financing and Investment Activities. Members approved the Treasury Management Strategy
report for 2023/24, and the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators.

Internal Audit Activity

Annual Internal Audit Report & Opinion 2021/22 — July 2022

The annual assurance report on the Council’s Internal Control, Governance, and Risk Management
activities was presented to Members. The report concluded that the Head of Audit was able to provide
sound assurance with no qualifications to the opinion. Members noted the opinion, and the Head of Audit
Partnership’s assurance of independence and conformance with the standards

Interim Internal Audit & Assurance Report 2022/23 — Nov 2022

The internal audit update report presented to Members, detailed the progress against the audit plan for
2022/23. Members noted the report

Mid-Year Internal Audit Update — Jan 2023

The internal audit update report presented to Members, detailed the progress against the audit plan for
2022/23. Members noted the report

External Audit Activity

External Audit Plan 2021/22 — July 2022

External audit presented to Members the report which included an overview of the scope, cost, and timing
of the audit for 2020/21. Members noted the External Audit Plan.

Other Activity

Audit Committee Annual Report 2021/22 - July 2022

A report on the activity of the Audit Committee was presented to members. It outlined the attendance of
members, details the Terms of Reference for the committee, and activity of the committee throughout the
year. The Audit Committee Annual report was agreed by Members, and the Chair of the Audit Committee
will present the report to Full Council to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee Risk Management Update — Risk management Framework 2022 — July 2022

The report detailed for Members the Council’s risk management framework arrangements. Members noted
the risk management framework arrangements.

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 — July 2022

The report sought the agreement of the Audit Committee to the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
which would form part of the Council’s Annual accounts. The AGS would be signed-off by the Leader of
the Council and the Chief Executive and it would be reported back to the Audit Committee in November
2022.

Page 152



Sources of Assurance

Audit Committee have drawn on a variety of sources of assurance to fulfil their responsibilities.
During 2022/23 assurance from the following sources was considered:

Finance Activity

The Committee reviewed and provided challenge on the annual accounts prior to their approval and
publication.

The Committee reviewed and provided Challenge on the Treasury Management Strategy, outturn and
mid-year review. The Committee were given the opportunity to comment on the performance indicators
prior to their approval.

Internal Audit Activity

The Council received an unqualified Annual Opinion from the Head of Internal Audit. This opinion
considers the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s framework of governance, risk
management and control arrangements.

The 2022/23 audit plans included detail of audit assurance work for the. The Committee were given the
opportunity to comment on the work of internal audit prior to endorsing the plan for delivery.

External Audit Activity

The External Auditors presented an unqualified opinion for the Council’s financial statements and value
for money conclusion for 2021/22. The Committee provided effective challenge to the External Auditors
and gained assurance from the reports and updates provided by Grant Thornton during the year.

Other Activity

The annual risk management report provided an overview of the effectiveness of the Council’s risk
management framework and the controls in place to manage corporate and operational risks.

The Committee reviewed the Annual Governance Statement which supported the overall conclusion of
the Head of Internal Audit Opinion and identified actions for improvement. The Committee specifically
gained assurance from this document as it explains the processes and procedures in place to enable the
Council to carry out its functions effectively.

Conclusion

The Audit Committee has worked in partnership with the Council’s Internal and External Auditors
and received support from Officers. This has provided robust and effective independent
assurance to the Council on a wide range of risk, governance and internal control issues.

The Audit Committee can demonstrate that it has appropriately and effectively fulfilled its duties
during 2022/23 as set out in the respective minutes.

(o))

Page 153



Appendix A — Audit Committee Terms of Reference

Audit Activity

Regulatory Framework

Accounts

To consider the Head of Audit
Partnership’s annual report
and opinion, and a summary
of audit activity (actual and
proposed) and the level of
assurance it can give over the
council’s governance
arrangements, and any report
from Internal Audit on agreed
recommendations not
implemented within a
reasonable timescale.

To review any issue referred
to it by the Chief Executive or
a Director or any Council
body.

To monitor the effective
development and operation of
risk management and
corporate governance in the
Council.

To review and approve the
annual statement of accounts.
Specifically, to consider
whether there are concerns
arising from the financial
statement or from the audit
that need to be brought to the
attention of the Cabinet or the
Council.

To consider reports dealing
with the management and
performance of Internal Audit
Services, including
consideration and
endorsement of the 3 year
Strategic Internal Audit Plan.

To monitor council policies on
‘Whistleblowing’ and the
‘Antifraud and Corruption

Strategy’.

To consider the external
auditor’s report to those
charged with governance on
issues from the audit of the
accounts.

To consider the external
auditor’s annual letter, the
report to those charged with
governance, and any specific
reports as agreed with the
external auditor.

To consider and comment on
the authority’s Annual
Governance Statement and
agree its adoption as part of
the approval of the annual
accounts.

To be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the
treasury management strategy
and policies (Note: Council is
responsible for adopting the
Treasury Management
strategy and policy).

To liaise with the Audit
Commission over the
appointment of the Council’s
external auditor, comment on
the scope and depth of
external audit work and
ensure that it gives value for
money.

To consider the council’s
arrangements for governance
and whether adequate
safeguards are in place to
secure compliance with its
own and other published
standards and controls and
best practice.

To present an annual report to
the Council providing
assurance that the
responsibilities of the
Committee have been met.

Page 154




	Agenda
	5 Annual Financial Report 2022/23 and Audit Findings Report
	App I - SBC Audit Finding Report 2022-23
	App II - Letter of Representation October 2023
	App III - Annual Financial Report 2022-23

	6 Audit Committee Annual Report 2022/23
	Appendix I - Audit Committee Annual Report 2022-23


